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Definitions

“Board”: the board of directors of the Bank
“CBRC”: the China Banking Regulatory Commission
“CBRC the CBRC Guangdong Office
Guangdong™:
“GM” the General Manager of the Bank
“MSBIC”, the Morgan Stanley Bank International (China)
“Bank”, or Limited

“Our Bank™:
“PBoC”: the People’s Bank of China
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Registered Chinese
Corporate Name

Registered English
Corporate Name

Legal
Representative:

Registered Capital:
Shareholder

Scope of Business:

Basic Information

FERR A E B IRAT (PED FIRA

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China)
Limited

Benjamin John Falloon

RMB 1 billion (as of December 31, 2016)
Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited

The Bank is permitted to provide the
following services to any customers for
foreign currency business and to customers
except for China citizens in the territory of
China for RMB business: accepting public
deposits; providing short-term, medium and
long-term loans; undertaking acceptance and
discounting of negotiable instruments; buying
and selling government bonds, financial
bonds, and other foreign currency securities
except for shares; providing letters of credit
service and guarantee; conducting domestic
and international settlements; buying and
selling foreign currency for its own accounts
or as agents; inter-bank borrowing and
lending; providing bank card service;
providing safety box service; providing credit
investigation and consultancy service; and
other businesses approved by CBRC.
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Branch
Information:

Registered
Address:

Office Address:

Contact Phone
Number:

Date of First
Registration:

Authority of
Registration:

Credibility Code:

Financial
Institution License
Number:

Auditor:

The Bank was approved by CBRC on June
10, 2009 to establish a branch in Beijing and
obtained the branch business license on June
24, 2009, with operating period from June 24,
2009 to December 14, 2024.

The Beijing Branch’s office address — Units
6B, 6, 8, 10, Tower 1, 18 Taipingqiao Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing, PRC

28/F 2801-2807, 2816, Yuecai Building,
No.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai,
Guangdong, PRC

28/F 2801-2807, 2816, Yuecai Building,
No.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai,
Guangdong, PRC

0756-3212188

December 14,1984

Zhuhai Administration of Industry and
Commerce

91440400X17502779G

B0029H144040001

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd

Address: 30/F Bund Center, 222 Yan An
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Road East, Shanghai 200002, PRC

Client Service & +86 756 321-2188

Compliant Hotline ¢ ) ¢356.3019 (Beijing Branch)
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Introduction to Morgan Stanley

Bank International (China) Limited

Our Bank is wholly owned by Morgan Stanley Bank International
Limited, a subsidiary of Morgan Stanley group.

The Bank, formerly known as Nan Tung Bank Ltd, Zhuhai (“Nan
Tung Bank™), becomes a Morgan Stanley group company since
September 2006, and officially changed to the current name on May
30, 2007. Established in 1984 with the approval from PBOC, Nan
Tung Bank was the first wholly foreign-owned bank incorporated
and headquartered in mainland China and the first foreign-funded
bank in the Zhuhai Special Economy Zone. The Bank has been
providing quality banking products and services to various clients
with the service principles of being professional, innovative, flexible

and practical.

Morgan Stanley, the Bank’s ultimate holding company, is a global
financial services firm that maintains significant market positions in
each of its business segments—Institutional Securities, Wealth
Management and Investment Management. Morgan Stanley, through
its subsidiaries and affiliates, provides a wide variety of products and
services to a large and diversified group of clients and customers,

including corporations, governments, financial institutions and
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individuals. Morgan Stanley conducts its business from its
headquarters in and around New York City, its regional offices and
branches throughout the U.S. and its principal offices in London,

Tokyo, Hong Kong and other world financial centers.

10
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IR AR K I AR B IR L

AT ME — I 2R A2 BEAR 1 PR B R AT H R A\ (Morgan
Stanley Bank International Limited) , A B JoFRE L4122
P

Shareholder’s Name and Changes

Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited is the sole shareholder of
the Bank. There was no shareholding change to our Bank within the

reporting period.

11
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Shareholder’s Background

Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited is a private limited
company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales on
February 23, 1999 (registration number 3722571), with registered
office at 25 Cabot Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 4QA, United
Kingdom. The main business activity of Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited is the provision of financial services to
corporations, governments, and financial institutions. Morgan
Stanley Bank International Limited provides financial advisory
services; corporate and retail lending; sales, trading, financing and
market-making activities in fixed income securities, including
foreign exchange and investment activities. Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited is ultimately 100% held by Morgan Stanley. In
addition to holding 100% share in our Bank, Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited operates one branch in Italy, Germany and
Korea respectively. Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited had
total assets of approximately GBP5.7 billion as at December 31,
2016.

13
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Shareholder’s Meeting Information

As the sole shareholder of the Bank, Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited acts through its board of directors to exercise
its shareholder responsibilities. The board of directors of Morgan
Stanley Bank International Limited, representing the Bank’s

shareholder:

(1) holds regular meetings and ad hoc meetings (where

necessary);

(2) reviews the Bank’s reports, including (1) market updates, (ii)
strategic initiatives, (iii) business updates, and (iv) financial

updates;

(3) approves nomination of directors/supervisors of the Bank

and, where needed, capital injection proposals; and

(4) approves other important matters that are required to be

approved by the shareholder.

15



AR PR R 4R (o [ DR 4
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

BETMBEAR ., S0 HFEH

20165 AAT TGN BB N E M BEAS . 7 SL A IR I

Change in Registered Capital, Merger & Division

There were no changes in registered capital, merger or division of the

Bank in 2016.

oA B R I

AAT ARG AT AE2016 55047 K A2 AT RE 2 X JRATTH & 7 Ak
AR AL B A 5577 A5 B R AN 32 0 ) 00

Other Material Events

We believe that our Bank did not have any events in 2016 which may
have material adverse effect on the Bank’s clients and the services

the Bank provides.

16
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Overall Evaluation on Our Bank’s Corporate Governance

Since August 2013, the Bank has conducted a comprehensive review
and gap analysis on the corporate governance of the Bank according
to the Guidelines on Commercial Banks’ Corporate Governance (the
“Guidelines™) issued by CBRC in July 2013. The proposal to amend
the Articles of Association of the Bank to reflect certain requirements
of the Guidelines has been approved by the Board and the board of
directors of Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited. The
proposed amendments on the Articles of Association have been

approved by CBRC.

There are six committees established under the Board: Compliance
Committee, Related Party Transaction Committee, Risk Committee,
Audit Committee, Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and IT Steering Committee. There are four sub-
committees established under Risk Committee: Business Continuity
Management Committee, Loan Commitment Committee, Asset and
Liability Management Committee, and Operational Risk Oversight
Committee. In 2016, All committees hold regular or ad hoc meetings
for the purposes of managing and controlling the Bank's various risks
through implementing appropriate internal controls, monitoring the
Bank's risk management policies, procedures and reporting processes,
and examining and approving related party transactions according to

laws and regulations.

24



AR PR R 4R (o [ TR 0
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

The senior management of the Bank has adequate management
discretion within their scope of responsibilities regarding the Bank’s
business activities. The senior management of the Bank reports to the
Board, endeavoring to achieve capital appreciation and development
of the Bank and maximize the shareholder’s interests. There are four
committees established under the GM of the Bank: Management
Committee, Interbank Activities Committee, Anti-money Laundering
Committee, and New Product Committee. Interbank Activities
Committee was established in 2014. These committees hold meetings
on a regular or ad-hoc basis to discuss and make decisions of related

matters.

In 2016, the Bank continues to implement the local reporting line,
and enhances the local management authority of senior management
of the Bank. Currently, the Bank’s department heads, including the
head of trading desks, have a respective solid reporting line to the
GM in addition to their functional reporting line, with the exception
of Internal Audit which reports to Audit Committee under the Board
and Compliance which reports to Compliance Committee under the
Board and functional Compliance. The primary manager of each
department head of the Bank is now the GM (apart from Internal
Audit & Compliance). Each year, the GM of the Bank/the Chairman
of the Board of Directors (on behalf of the Board of Directors) and
the respective functional heads jointly agree on objectives for each
department head. They evaluate the department heads’ performance

together at least once a year. The decisions on compensation are

25
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proposed jointly by the GM of the Bank/the Chairman of the Board
of Directors (on behalf of the Board of Directors) and the respective
functional heads each year. These proposals will be submitted,
together with the overall performance evaluation documentation, to
Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the

Bank for review.

The Bank continues to implement the relevant policies that grant
local management authority over daily operations of the Bank to the
senior management. Each department handles the relevant affairs of
the Bank according to the Bank’s policies as well as authorization of

the Board of Directors and/or GM.

The Bank has recruited/appointed or 1is in the process of
recruiting/appointing a number of personnel to further enhance the
Bank’s management and monitor the Bank’s business. = The Bank
received approval of Mr. Pan Xiaolu as Deputy General Manager and
Mrs. Zhang Hong as Head of Compliance in May 2016 from CBRC
Guangdong; as well as the approval of Mrs. Chen Xiaobing as the
Head of Finance in June 2016 from CBRC Guangd ong.

GM of the Bank, Mr. Xiang Qian (Pierre), has performed his duties
and responsibilities and forms a stable bank management. He also
coordinates the implementation of the Bank’s business plan, explores

new business opportunities, improves the Bank’s profitability and

26
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reports to the Board of Directors relating to the implementation of

the business plan.

The Bank has established the Board of Supervisors. In addition to
the meeting of the Board of Supervisors, the supervisors also
attended (without vote right) the meetings of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Directors committees. The Board of Supervisors of
the Bank supervises the performance of duties of the directors and

senior management of the Bank.

27
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

Functions of the Board

The Board shall be responsible to the shareholder and exercise the

following powers in accordance with relevant laws, regulations and

Articles of Association of the Bank:

(1)
(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

Formulating and amending the Bank’s Articles of Association;

Determining the Bank’s business plans, investment plans and

strategic policies;

Hearing, examining and approving the General Manager’s

work reports;

Examining and approving the annual final accounts of the

Bank and plans for dealing with any surplus profits;

Appointing and dismissing the Bank’s senior management
personnel and deciding on remuneration programs for directors,
supervisors and senior management personnel, and appointing

external auditors;

Examining and finalizing the establishment and the dissolution

of the Bank’s internal organizations;
Reporting to the shareholder on a regular basis;

Approving the basic management system, internal rules and

business plans for daily operations of the Bank;

30
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)

(10)

(11)

(12)
(13)

(14)

(15)

Setting up various special committees, in accordance with the
Bank’s needs and actual circumstances, for making decisions
in various areas on behalf of the Board, or for providing expert
opinions in various areas to the Board, and for carrying out
inspection and supervision activities with respect to the
business situations in such areas. These special committees

shall each have clear objectives, powers and responsibilities;

Examining and discussing capital increase, capital reduction,

share transfers and other important matters relating to the Bank;

Determining and approving the establishment and termination

of business branches;
Determining and approving profit allocation plans;

Approving any application for extension of the term of the

Bank;

Approving the conduct of court proceedings, arbitrations and

other legal proceedings on behalf of the Bank; and

Other powers as stipulated by laws and regulations, and the
Bank’s Articles of Association, or authorized by the

shareholder.
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The members on the Board as of December 31, 2016, the details
of whom are set out below. In addition, several new directors

have been appointed by the shareholder of the Bank.

1.  Mr. Benjamin John Falloon obtained a Postgraduate Diploma
in Commerce from the University of Otago in 2014. He has
accumulated over 20 years of working experience in the
financial services industry, most of which in senior
management positions. From December 1995 to May 1997,
Mr. Falloon worked in the UBS UK Limited in cash and
derivatives middle office; From May 1997 to March 1998, he
worked in UBS Australia Ltd in derivatives and cash product
control; From March 1998 to September 2008, he worked in
the Hong Kong office of Credit Suisse in a number of different
roles and became a Managing Director in the Emerging
Markets Group responsible for fixed income and derivative
product sales. Mr. Falloon joined Morgan Stanley Asia
Limited as a Managing Director in late 2008 and is currently
the head of Asia Pacific Fixed Income. Mr. Falloon became
the Chairman of the Bank in November 2015 upon receiving

CBRC approval.
2. Mr. Pierre Xiang obtained a MBA Degree in Paris Graduate

School of Management. After graduation, from June 1998 to

October 2001 he worked in Shenzhen Development Bank as
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the Chief Trader of International Business Department Trading
Office; From October 2001 to April 2003, he was the Deputy
Manager of the Treasury Planning FID Office, Shenzhen
Development Bank; From April 2003 to June 2004, he was
the Manager of Treasury Capital Market Department in
Shenzhen Development Bank; From June 2004 to November
2005, he was the Deputy General Manager of the Financial
Institution Department Trading Center of Shenzhen
Development Bank; From November 2015 to June 2006, he
was the Deputy General Manager of Treasury Department in
China Everbright Bank; from July 2006 to September 2008, he
was the Chief Representative of the Shanghai Representative
Office of ABN AMRO; from October 2008 to March 2011, he
was the Chief Representative of the Beijing Representative
Office of UBS Asset Management HK; from March 2011 to
June 2014, he was the President of the Asset Management
Department of UBS Security; and then he joined Morgan
Stanley Bank International (China) Limited (MSBIC) to act as
the Proposed General Manager. He was approved by GD
CBRC as the Executive Director of MSBIC on 7" April 2015,
and he was approved as the General Manager of MSBIC by
the CBRC on 20™ July 2015.

3. Ms. Agnes Lai joined Morgan Stanley in 1995 and has been
working in Finance in various positions including Regional

Finance Chief Operating Officer, Head of Management
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Reporting, Head of Business Unit Control for PWM, IBD and
Merchant Banking. Agnes is currently a Managing Director of
Morgan Stanley and the Chief Financial Officer of Morgan
Stanley China. Agnes graduated from the University of
Sydney with a Bachelor of Economics degree major in
Accounting in 1993 and earned her Master of Accounting and
Finance degree from Macquarie University in 1995. She
earned the CPA qualification in 1998. Agnes was appointed as
a Director of MSBIC with the approval from CBRC
Guangdong on 18 April 2013. (Ms. Agnes Lai resigned as
MSBIC Director on December 31%, 2016)

4. Mr. Elton Cheung obtained Bachelor of Economics, University
of Sydney in May 1995, and Bachelor of Laws (Honors),
University of Sydney in May 1997. He worked as a senior
attorney with Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer in Hong Kong
and London from January 1998 to September 2006. He was
one of the lead attorneys supporting the Firm’s Merchant
Banking Division across the entire Asia Pacific region from
September 2006 to December 2008. Then he became the
senior attorney on the China legal team in Morgan Stanley
from December 2008 to June 2010. From June 2010, he
assumed the Head of the China Legal team that provides legal
support across all of Morgan Stanley’s China businesses,
including its onshore as well as offshore business platforms. In

March 2015, Elton was appointed as the Morgan Stanley
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China Chief Operating Officer. Effective from 1 April 2011,
Elton was appointed as a MSBIC Director with the approval
from CBRC Guangdong.

5. Ms. Noreen Philomena Whyte obtained a BA (Hons) Business
Studies Degree in University of Westminster. After graduation,
from September 1995 to June 1997 she worked in GE
Insurance Services as the Business Centre Manager; from June
1997 to June 1999, she worked in GE Consumer Finance as
the Client Relational Manager; from June 1999 to October
2001, she worked as the Client Relational Manager in GE
Consumer Finance ; from October 2001 to December 2002,
she was the Master Black Belt (Strategic Project Leadership)
in GE Consumer Finance; from January 2003 to January 2004,
she was the Integration Leader/General Manager in GE Money;
from January 2004 to August 2005, she was the Originations
Director in GE Money; from August 2005 to October 2007,
she was the Operating & Risk Officer in Morgan Stanley; from
October 2007 to December 2010, she was the Executive
Director Fixed Income Division in Morgan Stanley; from
December 2010 to July 2014 she was the Managing Director
of GCM Division in Morgan Stanley and since July 2014 till
now, she was the CEO of MSBIL and the Managing Director
of GCM Division in Morgan Stanley. She was approved by
GD CBRC as the Director of MSBIC on 11th June 2015.

40



AR PR R 4R (o [ TR 0
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

6.

Ms. Yahlin Chang obtained a Bachelor degree in electrical
engineering in Cornell University. After graduation, from
June 1989 to March 1992, she worked in New York Andersen
Consulting as a Consultant. Since joining Morgan Stanley in
March 1992, Yahlin has held a variety of roles within
Technology and Operations, covering different disciplines
within these two divisions, including application development,
IT risk and security, operational risk and control, regulatory
reporting and COO functions. Yahlin has worked in the Hong
Kong, London and New York offices during her tenure with
the Firm. Yahlin is currently the Asia Head of Technology
and Information Risk. She was approved by GD CBRC as the
Director of MSBIC on 28th April 2015.

Mr. Jianxin Geng, graduated from Renmin University of China
Accounting Major with Doctor's Degree in 1993. He has been
the Associate director of accounting, Associate Professor,
Professor, Doctoral supervisor, Postdoctoral contact, Members
of the academic committee of Renmin University of China; he
is currently the Faculty of Business School, Second-level
Professor, and has been the Member of the Accounting
Standards Board of the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Geng has
been approved by GD CBRC as the Independent Director of
MSBIC on 6™ August 2015.
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Operation of the Board in 2016

The Board forms an efficient system for decision making and
monitoring and strictly complies with the laws and the Articles of
Association of the Bank in decision-making, authorization and
voting process. All directors of the Bank attend the board meetings
with earnest and responsible attitude, acknowledge the rights,
obligations and responsibilities of directors, are industrious and
responsible, and could focus on the interests of the Bank and the
shareholder. During the year of 2015, there were four Board
meetings on 8§ March, 6 Apr, 30 Aug, , and 9 Dec respectively.

Work of the Independent Director in 2016

The Independent Director of the Bank has participated in all the
meetings of the Board after he was approved by CBRC. The
independent director independently expressed his objective and
impartial views on matters discussed. The independent director of the

Bank participated in the discussion of the following matters:
(1)Recruitment of the senior management of the Bank;
(2)Reviewing of Related Party transactions;
(3)Reviewing of internal and external audit report;
(4)Reviewing of compliance related issues, and

(5)Other important matters relating to the Bank.
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Senior Management of the Bank

The senior management of the Bank, under the leadership of the
Board, is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of the
Bank. The members of the senior management whose qualifications

have been approved by CBRC as of March 31, 2016 included:

1. Mr. Pierre Xiang obtained a MBA Degree in Paris Graduate
School Of Management. After graduation, from June 1998 to
October 2001 he worked in Shenzhen Development Bank as
the Chief Trader of International Business Department Trading
Office; From October 2001 to April 2003, he was the Deputy
Manager of the Treasury Planning FID Office, Shenzhen
Development Bank; From April 2003 to June 2004, he was
the Manager of Treasury Capital Market Department in
Shenzhen Development Bank; From June 2004 to November
2005, he was the Deputy General Manager of the Financial
Institution Department Trading Center of Shenzhen
Development Bank; From November 2015 to June 2006, he
was the Deputy General Manager of Treasury Department in
China Everbright Bank; from July 2006 to September 2008, he
was the Chief Representative of the Shanghai Representative
Office of ABN AMRO; from October 2008 to March 2011, he
was the Chief Representative of the Beijing Representative
Office of UBS Asset Management HK; from March 2011 to
June 2014, he was the President of the Asset Management
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Department of UBS Security; and then he joined Morgan
Stanley Bank International (China) Limited (MSBIC) to act as
the Proposed General Manager. He was approved by GD
CBRC as the Executive Director of MSBIC on 7™ April 2015,
and he was approved as the General Manager of MSBIC by
the CBRC on 20" July 2015.

2. Ms. Stella Yang obtained dual-Bachelor degrees of Industrial
Management Engineering and Computer and Application from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University. She obtained a Master degree
in Risk Management and Insurance from the School of
Economics in Peking University. Stella obtained her PhD
degree in Insurance and Risk Management from the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania. Stella served in the
headquarters of Industry and Commercial Bank of China in
Beijing from 1999 to 2000. Stella served in Radian Guaranty
Group, Inc. in Philadelphia in 2005. From 2005 to 2011, she
served in the Headquarters of Morgan Stanley in New York in
the Operational Risk Department from 2005 to 2009, and the
Credit Risk Department from 2009 to 2011. Stella was
appointed as the Chief Risk Officer of MSBIC with the
approval from CBRC Guangdong on 24 June 2013.

3. Ms. Fang Zheng obtained Bachelor Degree of International
Finance and MBA Degree in University of International
Business and Economics in 1993 and 2001 respectively. Fang

Served in China Nam Kwong National Import and Export
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Corporation from July 1993 to May 1998. Fang served in
HSBC Beijing Branch from June 1998 to August 2000. Fang
served in Sino-Guaranty Banker Company limited from
December 2001 to September 2002. Fang served in HSBC
Beijing Branch from October 2002 to June 2006. She served in
Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing branch from June
2006 to April 2012. Fang joined MSBIC Beijing Branch since
April 2012 and was appointed as the Deputy Branch Manager
of MSBIC Beijing Branch with the approval from CBRC
Beijing on April 24, 2014. She was appointed as the Branch
Manager of MSBIC Beijing Branch by CBRC Beijing on 4"
December 2015.

4. Mr. Alan Pan graduated in July 1997 from Shanghai Institute
of Foreign Trade with a Bachelor's Degree and obtained a
Master's degree in March 2007. He assumed duty of the Head
of Loan Operation Department in Mizuho Corporate Bank
Shanghai Branch from July 1997 to November 2004. From
November 2004 to May 2006 he served as the Head of Loan
Operation Department in Deutsche Bank Shanghai Branch.
From May 2006 to March 2013, Alan served as the Head of
Operation Department in Royal Bank of Scotland (China) Co.,
Ltd. Alan Pan joined MSBIC in April 2013. He was appointed
as the Deputy General Manager of MSBIC with the approval
from CBRC Guangdong on 24" May, 2016.
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5. Mrs. Holly Zhang obtained Bachelor Degree of Law in
University of International Business and Economics in 2001,

and obtained Master Degree of Economics in University of
Beijing in 2012. Prior to joining MSBIC in June 2015, Holly
served in Compliance Department of Standard Chartered Bank
Shanghai Branch, Citibank Shanghai Branch, UBS (China)
Limited, Société Générale (China) Limited from Sept 2002 to
May 2015. Holly was appointed as the Head of Compliance of
MSBIC with the approval from CBRC Guangdong on 24"
May, 2016.

6.  Mrs. Elaine Chen obtained Bachelor Degree of Accounting in
University of Shenzhen. Elaine served as auditor in Shekou
Chinese Accounting Firm from July 1993 to Aug 1996. She
served as accountant in Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ

(China), Ltd., Shenzhen Branch from Aug 1996 to Nov 2011.

She served as Assistant Manager in CITI Bank Shenzhen
Branch from Nov 2011 to Jan 2004. She served as Assistant
Vice President and Finance Manager in DBS Shenzhen Branch
from Jan 2004 to Jan 2006. She also served as Head of
Regulatory Reporting and Branch Finance in China in
Standard Chartered Bank (China) Ltd. from Jan 2006 to Jan
2016. Elaine joined MSBIC since Apr 2016; she was
appointed as the Head of Finance of MSBIC by CBRC
Guangdong on 24™ June, 2016.
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Composition the Functions of the Board of Supervisors

The board of supervisors constitutes the Bank’s supervisory
organization and is responsible to the shareholder the board of

supervisors of the Bank has the following powers:

(1) Exercising scrutiny over the acts of the directors and senior
management personnel in the performance of their duties that
contravene laws and regulations or the Articles of Association
of the Bank; bringing forward proposals for the removal of any
director or senior management who violates any law,
administrative regulation, the Articles of Association or any

resolution of the shareholder’s meeting;

(2) Requesting the rectification of any acts of the directors and
senior management personnel that harm the rights and interests
of the Bank, shareholder, employees, deposit customers, or
other interested parties; organizing the investigation of and

proposing solutions for major cases;

(3) Examining and monitoring the Bank’s financial activities, and

examining the Bank’s annual final accounts;

(4) Reporting to the Shareholder on the status of work

performance of the directors and senior management personnel;

(5) Initiating actions against directors or senior management
according to Article 152 of the PRC Company Law

implemented, and which may be amended from time to time,
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effective from 1 January 2006; and

(6) Other powers as stipulated by laws and regulations, and the
Bank’s Articles of Association, or authorized by the

shareholder.
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Composition of the Board of Supervisors

The board of supervisors of the Bank is composed of five supervisors
as of December 31, 2016, the details of whom are set out below. In
addition, the Bank plans to hold an election among the Bank’s

employees to elect an additional employee representative supervisor.

1. Mr. Brett Dugald Cameron Graham graduated from
Queensland University with Honours in Law in 1987. Prior to
joining Morgan Stanley in June 1997, he was an associate at
Clifford Chance in Hong Kong and Tokyo, and prior to that he
did his legal training and worked as a solicitor, at Morris
Fletcher and Cross, Brisbane (now Minter Ellison), and
Hashidate Law Office in Tokyo. Brett was the Co-Chairman of
Morgan Stanley’s Franchise Risk Committee for Asia Pacific.
Brett was previously the Deputy Head of Legal for Asia
Pacific. Brett Graham was based in Hong Kong, and became a
Managing Director of Morgan Stanley in 2005. Brett is the
General Counsel for Morgan Stanley for the Asia Pacific

region.

2. Ms. Tsai Wen Qing, Rachel obtained Bachelor Degree of
Fiscal and Taxation at Zhong Xing University, Taiwan and
Master Degree of Accounting at Syracuse University, America.
Rachel served as senior auditor of KPMG, Taipei from July
1997 to December 1998. From January 1999 to August 2002
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Rachel served as Deputy Manager of Accounting at JP Morgan
Securities, Taipei and Deputy Manager of Fund Operation at
JP Morgan Fleming, Taipei. She served as internal auditor of
Goldman Sachs, Taipei Branch from October 2002 to May
2003. Rachel joined Morgan Stanley as Head of Taiwan
Compliance from June 2003 to November 2013 and she is

currently the Head of China Compliance since November 2013.

3. Mr. Eric Hahne graduated from Bonn University as a
postgraduate. Eric joined Morgan Stanley in May 2000, and
worked in London office until September 2007. Eric moved to
Morgan Stanley Hong Kong office in September 2007 and
served as the COO for Morgan Stanley Asia Equity
Derivatives since then. Currently, Eric is the COO for Morgan
Stanley Asia Pacific FID (since May 2014) and COO for MSI
Asia (since May 2013).

4. Mr. Justin Li, obtained a Master's Degree in Finance from Nan
Kai University. From July 2006 to November 2010, he worked
as an Analyst in Market Risk Department in Bo Hai Bank;
from June 2012 to November 2010, he worked as the Head of
Asset and Liability Risk Management Department in Temasek
Fu Deng Financial Holdings; he joined MSBIC since July
2012 as the Head of Treasury. Justin was elected by the
Bank’s employees as a Supervisor of MSBIC in May 2015.
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5. Mr. Ricky Kang graduated from Renmin University of China
in June 2006, and got a Master degree of Law. He also
obtained 2nd Master degree of Economics from Sun Yat-Sen
University in June 2015. Ricky worked in HSBC from July
2006 to June 2012, and took the duty of management trainee,
Operations manager in Dalian branch, Hefei branch, Foshan
sub-branch, Guangzhou branch and Deputy sub-branch
manager in Qingyuan. Ricky worked in Tariff Policy
Department, Ministry of Finance, PRC from June 2012 to
December 2012. Ricky joined MSBIC as Zhuhai and core-
banking Operations manager in December 2012, and was
elected by the bank’s employees as supervisor of MSBIC in
July 2016.

Operation of the Board of Supervisors in 2016

The Board of Supervisors of the Bank held four meetings on 15
March, 29 July, 31 August and 30 November respectively. In
addition, the Supervisors of the Bank also attended (without voting
rights) the meetings of the Board and Board committees and

participated in discussions on risk management and control of the

Bank.
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Remuneration Policy of the Bank and Remuneration of the

Bank’s Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The Bank’s compensation program is designed to achieve key
objectives: (i) delivering pay-for-performance, (ii) attracting and
retaining top talent, (ii1) aligning compensation with shareholder’s

interests, and (iv) mitigating excessive risk-taking.

The Bank’s Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (the “HR Committee) was appointed by the Board and
established in May 2013. The HR Committee is to assist the Board
to discharge its responsibilities relating to the appointments and
compensation of the Bank’s independent director(s) and senior
management, and to oversee the Bank’s human resources matters. In
2016, the HR Committee had held 2 meetings to review and endorse

the human resources management related matters of the Bank.

Additional business factors will be taken into account when making
salary adjustment and bonus decisions. The Bank’s management
team conducts joint discussions with functional managers to make
the compensation decisions for the senior management members of

the Bank, based on guidance from the Morgan Stanley group and
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taking the Bank’s business conditions into consideration. The
compensation decisions of the senior management of the Bank are

reviewed by the HR Committee.

In respect of each individual, based on the Bank’s and Morgan
Stanley group's annual compensation principle, the performance
results will be the major reference to the employee’s salary

adjustment and annual performance bonus decision.

The Bank will follow Morgan Stanley Group’s Deferral Payment
and Clawback Policy, which is announced by the board of directors
of Morgan Stanley globally on an annual basis, to implement the

deferral payment and clawback arrangement within the Bank.

In 2016, the directors and the supervisors of the Bank were not paid
by the Bank for their director/supervisor positions, except for the

independent director.

The 2016 compensations of the senior management of the Bank

were about RMB 13 million.

(Notes: the senior management refers to those who were still the
active employees and had obtained CBRC’s approval as of the end
of 2016)
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Risk Management

Risk is an inherent part of both Morgan Stanley’s and of the Bank’s
business activity. The Bank seeks to identify, assess, monitor and
manage each of the various types of risk involved in its business
activities in accordance with defined policies and procedures. The
Bank has developed its own risk management policy framework,
which is consistent with and leverages the risk management policies
and procedures of the Morgan Stanley group and which include
escalation to appropriate senior management personnel of the Bank
as well as oversight through the Board and through a dedicated Risk

Committee (and its sub-committees) that reports to the Board.

MSBIC Board bears the ultimate responsibility of the Bank’s
Enterprise Risk Management, and delegated some of its
responsibilities to the Risk Committee. The Supervisory Board
shoulders the responsibility of supervision. MSBIC Senior
Management is responsible for the implementation of the Enterprise
Risk Management. The Bank has established its Enterprise Risk
Management Framework, clarified the roles and responsibilities of
business units and risk management functions, and set up the
working model of cooperation and check-and-balance among
different departments. The Business Units are the first line of

defense of risk management; the independent risk management
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related functions serve as the second line of defense; and the Internal

Audit Department is the third line of defense for risk management.

The bank identifies, measures, assesses, monitors, reports, controls
and mitigates various risk through a combination of qualitative and
quantitative approaches, including credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk, and reputational risk, etc. with details as

follows:

| | Credit Risks

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss arising when a borrower and
counterparty does not meet its financial obligations to the Bank.
Credit risk includes the risk that economic, social and political
conditions and events in a foreign country will adversely affect an

obligor’s ability and willingness to fulfill their obligations.

Credit risk management policies and procedures for the Bank are
consistent with those of the Morgan Stanley group and include
escalation to the Board and appropriate key management personnel.
The Bank manages credit risk exposure on a consolidated basis. Its
credit risk management policies and procedures establish the
framework for identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling
credit risk whilst ensuring transparency of material credit risks,
ensuring compliance with established limits and escalating risk

concentrations to appropriate senior management.
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The Credit Risk Management Department evaluates the
creditworthiness of the Bank’s obligors on a regular basis, and
ensures that credit exposure is actively monitored and managed. The
evaluation of obligors includes an assessment of the probability that
an obligor will default on its financial obligations and any

subsequent losses that may occur when an obligor defaults.

In addition, credit risk exposure is actively managed by credit
professionals within the Credit Risk Management Department and
monitored through Risk Committee. A comprehensive Credit Limits
Framework is utilized to manage credit risk levels within the Bank.
The MSBIC’s Credit Limits Framework is calibrated within the
Group’s risk tolerance and set by the risk appetite of the Board, and
includes single-name limits and portfolio concentration limits by

country, industry and product type.

The Bank incurs credit risk from the primarily lending to institutions
through corporate loan lending, non-bank financial institutions
lending and short-term interbank money market placements. During
2016, in a continual active response to the changes in the
macroeconomic situation, the Bank implemented stable and prudent

credit policies with focus on low-risk high-quality enterprises.

As of 2016 year end, the Bank’s credit assets including loans and
advances to customers amounted to RMB280,000,000, representing

an increase of 40% over the end of 2015. This was mainly due to
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prudent risk acceptance standards.

Quality of credit assets

The Bank's target customers are primarily domestic leading
corporations, with no exposure to relatively high risk industries like

real estate or industries that are seriously affected by overcapacities.

In 2016 there was no loan classification migration and no non-
performing loan, hence loan migration rate and non-performing loan
ratio remained nil. The classification of all loan assets continued to

be at “Normal”.

The Bank classified its credit assets into five levels in accordance
with the Guidance on Loan Risk Classification promulgated by
CBRC and with consideration of its internal management
requirements. In 2016, all the credit assets were in normal category
according to this five-level classification and there were no bad
loans recorded. This was mainly because both the existing loans and
the newly added loans during the year were all high-quality

corporate loans.

For a loan and advance to customer that show indication of
impairment, the Bank assesses the credit assets individually for
impairment and makes impairment individually. For credit assets

that are not deemed to be impaired, the Bank assesses the loans and
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advances to customer collectively for impairment. According to
evaluation, as of December 31, 2016, the total credit assets of the
Bank were RMB280,000,000 with no non-performing loan recorded.
The Bank provided loan loss provision amounting to RMB7,000,000
by using collective assessment method and provided nil provision by
using individual assessment method. Pursuant to the relevant
regulatory requirements, the Bank made a general risk reserves of
RMB8,410,000 with the 2016 year end cumulative balance ending at
RMB11,400,000. The balance of the reserves accrued by the Bank

satisfied the relevant regulatory requirements.

Country Risk

Country risk exposure is the risk that uncertainties arising from the
economic, social, security and political conditions within a foreign
country (any country other than the China) will adversely affect the
ability of the sovereign government and/or obligors within the

country to honor their obligations to the Bank.

Country risk exposure is measured in accordance with the Morgan
Stanley group’s internal risk management standards and local
regulatory guidelines, and includes obligations from sovereign
governments, corporations, clearing houses and financial institutions.
The Bank actively manages country risk exposure through a
comprehensive risk management framework that allows the Bank to

effectively identify, monitor and limit country risk.

77



AR PR R 4R (o [ TR 0
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

The Bank classifies the country risk level according to the rating of
the country and the regulation guidelines. As of December 31, 2016,
the country risk of the related risk assets of the Bank at
RMB129million were all classified as low , provision for
impairment amounting to RMBO0.65million according to CBRC
requirement. The country risk exposure was mainly related to

offshore deposits.

Concentration risk

The Bank strictly follows the requirements of the regulatory
authority to prudently manage the degree of loan concentration. By
the end of 2016, the ratio of single largest borrower over the Bank’s
equity balance was 6.5% and the ratio of related party loans over the
Bank’s equity balance was zero, both in compliance to the relevant

regulatory requirements.

Securities investments

As of December 31, 2016, all the investments of the Bank were in
trading financial assets, with the balance of RMB1,522million. The

investments were mainly under policy bank bonds.

IT  Market Risk Management

Market risk refers to the risk that a change in the level of one or

more market prices, rates, indices, correlations or other market
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factors, such as market liquidity, will result in losses for a position or
portfolio. The Bank’s market risks mainly include interest rate risk

and foreign exchange risk.

Sound market risk management is an integral part of the Bank’s
culture. The Bank is responsible for ensuring that market risk
exposures are well-managed and prudent, ensuring transparency of
material market risks, monitoring compliance with established limits,
and escalating risk concentrations to the Board and appropriate

senior management.

Market risk management policies and procedures for the Bank are
consistent with those of the Morgan Stanley group while meeting
local regulatory requirements to guide the market risk management
of the bank from a legal entity perspective. Market Risk Department
is responsible for the governance and oversight of all market risk
exposures arising from the Bank’s business activities by identifying
and defining market risks, developing and employing risk measures
and tools to monitor those risks, establishing tolerances and limits,
monitoring usage against these limits, and producing and distributing
comprehensive reports designed to keep senior management

apprised of the Bank’s market risk exposures.

The Bank has established and enhanced its market risk limits to
reflect its market risk appetite. Market risk limits are monitored

through the limit management system. Limit breaches are managed
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according the MSBIC Market Risk Management Policy. The Internal
Audit Department performs audit on market risk management on a
regular basis to ensure the framework is operating effectively and is

sufficient and efficient.

The Bank's primary trading business is bond trading, including
government bonds, PBoC bills, and policy bank bonds. The bank
measures its market risk in nominal terms, such as number of units
or market value, or through factor sensitivities (e.g. the change of
value with respect to the small change in the price of the underlying

instrument).

III  Operational Risks

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss, or of damage to a bank’s
reputation, resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems, or from external events. This definition includes
legal risk, but excludes strategic risk. The Bank may incur
operational risk across its full scope of business activities, including
revenue-generating activities (e.g., sales and trading) and support
functions (e.g., IT). As such, the Bank may incur operational risk in

each of its divisions, as well as in each oversight group.

The Bank has established an operational risk governance structure
and policy in order to protect the Bank to have continued

development. The revision of the above governance structure and
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policy is approved by the Board. The Operational Risk Oversight
Committee is responsible for overseeing the implementation of the

Bank’s operational risk policy.

The Bank’s operational risk management framework aims to
establish an overall standard of operational risk management for the
Bank. The Operational Risk Department, as an independent
operational risk management function, provides oversight for
operational risk identification, measurement, monitoring, controlling,
mitigation and risk acceptance. The bank employs various means to
manage its operational risk including operational risk incident
collection, Risk and Control Self Assessment (RCSA), Key Risk
Indicator (KRI) etc. The Bank reviews operational risk through
regular Operational Risk Oversight Committee meeting and
operational risk management reports. Issues are promptly reported
to senior management particularly in the areas that have material

operational risk.

In conclusion, the Bank has established an operational risk
management system in accordance with the business nature, scale
and complexity of the Bank. The system is capable to manage

operational risks in an effective manner.

IV Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk is the risk of loss or bankruptcy raised from the Bank's
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failure to provide sufficient funds for the decrease in liability or the
increase in assets. Liquidity risk can also be caused by the mismatch
between the amount and maturity between assets and liability. The
Bank has set up liquidity risk management policy and procedure,
focusing on quantization of amount and resources of current and
potential cash flow, identification of extra demand of fund raised
from stressing scenario and evaluation of fund can be obtained

through mortgage and non- mortgage borrowing.

The Asset and Liability Management Committee implements
efficient liquidity management, identify and control the short and
long-term liquidity risk, ensure the Bank operates with prudent
liquidity environment, and at the same time also meet the

requirement of the Bank’s daily operating funding.

With the report on each department’s funding requirements and
related maturity every day, Treasury manages excess cash to control
the funding surplus or shortage by currency. While Treasury overall
manages liquidity risk and FCG calculates liquidity related ratios
and develops liquidity reports. They partner with other departments
to ensure that liquidity related regulatory requirements for foreign
banks operating in China are met. Please find below the Bank’s key

liquidity risk ratios as of the year end of 2015 and 2016:
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Key risk indicator 2015 year end 2016 year end

Liquidity ratio 277% 296%
Liquidity risk Loan to deposit ratio- 17% 20%
indicators CNY

Loan to deposit ratio- o o

FCY 0% 0%

The Bank has implemented Contingency Funding Plan (including
liquidity stress test) and reports to Asset and Liability Management
Committee on a monthly basis. The main purpose of liquidity stress
test 1s to ensure the Bank is still able to carry out normal operations

within a year under credit crunch and liquidity crisis situations.

A\ Franchise Risk

Franchise risk describes potential risks to the way in which MSBIC
or Morgan Stanley conducts its business and the perception of such
risks by external parties including shareholders, clients, regulators
and the public. Franchise risks may be triggered by either the nature
of a transaction or business practice (e.g., a transaction without
economic substance or business purpose) or by the identity or
reputation of the client or counterparty (e.g., a client linked to
alleged corruption or other improper activities). A loss may be
experienced when the Bank is subject to franchise risk through
negative publicity, regulatory scrutiny, loss of revenue and/or costly
litigation. Certain proposals, transactions, or events may expose the
Bank to franchise risks. The following represent some of the risks

and events that give rise to franchise risk:
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. Suitability refers to whether a recommendation made by the
Bank for a given transaction or product is appropriate for a

particular counterparty or client;

. Conflicts of interest can arise when there is a divergence of
interests between the Bank and its clients, among the Bank’s
clients, or between employees on the one hand, and the Bank

or its clients on the other; and

. Complex structured finance transactions (“CSFTs”) warrant
increased scrutiny and sensitivity because such transactions
may be used to disguise inappropriate or questionable
activities, which give rise to heightened legal or reputational

risks.

If these risks materialize, they could result in damage to the
reputation of the Bank, in addition to having an impact on existing

and new business.

Given the increasingly complex regulatory and market environment,
franchise risk is mitigated through several layers of oversight and
control processes. The Bank has formulated and strictly implements
the MSBIC Franchise Risk Policy, and conducts annual franchise
risk training to ensure that employees can understand the
requirements of franchise risk management and identify the relevant
issues in time. The Bank’s Legal Counsel and Compliance

Department as well as all department and business unit managers
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serve as escalation points for potentially significant franchise matters

and raising organizational awareness of franchise risks.

At MSBIC, any activity potentially creating franchise risk is
elevated to senior management. In addition, any relevant matter (in
particular, which may have spillover effect and thus potential risks to
Morgan Stanley’s reputation or franchise) can be escalated by Bank
to governance bodies for franchise risk within Morgan Stanley group

for further decision.

VI Leverage Ratio Management

The Bank monitors Leverage ratio in accordance with CBRC’s
Regulation Governing the management of Leverage Ratio of
Commercial Banks (Revised) that is effective from 1 April 2015.
Leverage ratio is the rate of eligible net Tier 1 capital held by a
commercial bank to its total adjusted balance of on and off balance
sheet assets. As at December 31, 2016, Leverage ratio was 58%,
Tier 1 capital was CNY1,537million, Total adjusted on-balance
sheet & off-balance sheet was CNY2,645million. Leverage ratio is

above the regulatory requirement of 4%.

With respect to other more detailed information, please refer to the
note of the Financial Statements which are attached to the Annual

Report.

With respect to other more detailed information, please refer to the
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note of the Financial Statements which are attached to the Annual

Report.
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Internal Audit 2016 Annual Work Report and 2017 Audit Plan

Internal Audit prepares and submits its Internal Audit Annual Work
Report for 2016 in accordance with China Banking Regulatory
Commission’s (CBRC) guidelines. The audit status and

accomplishments of Internal Audit for 2016 are as follows:

Summary of 2016 Audit work

1. Internal Audit reported to the MSBIC Audit Committee in every
quarter of 2016 to update the Audit Committee on the overall
control environment of MSBIC, audit plan status, high risk audit
findings and any significant matters or disagreements. There

were no disagreements in 2016.

2. Internal Audit completed the following audits in 2016 according
to the audit plan approved by Audit Committee:

* 2015 MSBIC Consolidated Review of Regulatory Required
Audits — Related Party Transactions, Fraud Case Prevention,
and Compensation Governance (audit report issued in Feb

2016): Satisfactory

* 2016 MSBIC Operational Risk and Outsourcing Governance:
Satisfactory

* 2016 MSBIC Stress Testing, Market and Credit Risk Review:
Satisfactory
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2016 MSBIC Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) and Capital Adequacy: Satisfactory

2016 MSBIC Anti-Money Laundering Transaction Monitoring
and Reporting: Satisfactory

2016 MSBIC Consolidated Review of Regulatory Required
Audits — Related-Party Transactions, Fraud Case Prevention,
Emergency Response and Precautionary Measures, and

Compensation Governance: Satisfactory

3. Internal Audit completed two Exit Audits in 2016, which

included the prior Head of Finance and the prior Head of Internal

Audit.

4. Internal Audit verified the remediation actions completed in 2016

for the regulatory identified issues.

2017 Audit Plan

1. 2017 Audit Plan:

2017 MSBIC Lending, Syndication and Settlement
2017 MSBIC Finance

2017 MSBIC Market and Credit Risk Review and Stress Test
Models

2017 MSBIC ICAAP and Capital Adequacy
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* 2017 MSBIC Anti-Money Laundering

* 2017 MSBIC Consolidated Review of Regulatory Required
Audits — Related Party Transactions, Fraud Case Prevention,
Emergency Response and Precautionary Measures, and

Compensation Governance
* 2017 Exit Audits

* Verification of completed remediation actions for regulatory

1ssues

91



BEAR - B 4RAT (o ) PR
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

BAT AL AL = TR SRR

PATEN TR 2 F R R, BRI AT H A & 35
R #AH. SRS I kA 2 5T ES

£ 2016 4E[) “EEM-LFMRSBGERE B b, RITRITE
B ARMS AT, BRSNS KRBT A2 5
By X CEEMR SR ARREIRE H 7 682 R LSRRI 4
RGN B3 sh, BESRR T25. BT AN R TEERE
N, RTINS A AW EEES S, TEkE O
HI—f3 JJ&. fE 2016 R “BER PR eREREHEH” 4,
HARTE B B4

— AbEULE BE B R)E S

2016 4 6 H 8 H, WEXZTAINKE, ERLFHR L G
TR TAERLEER . 8 T RhE AL 7 REEmmeE, 3t
[l Z MBIk BBl xk, JEEE T (RBER) Silh. X2E
MR PRI SRS )\ R ) LEE R B %A1

.+ N OneSky #HIEIRFF

2016 4 7 H, BEEMRLSIRACE R TN E/EIKEE OneSky il
BT 5700 Z5KiRTFRF. ZEENAFRFRIRLEEGEEN

92



JEEAR PR [ B AT () A R 7]
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

R bRESCT IR T E . I R AR B SRR L
ML E EINAE, W AT R .

= HRIEEE D)

R R TS EERAE “BRZ” WIENG—E, &R
FEMEHEE LSS NEFY), JF2 TR EH N E K
FRIRAR s BRI 53 TR KOS 75 T IR Ve 2 [l 467 4 LT b ) iz
Yo, FLFLET A R I .

VU g T ai = e et )

2016 £ 6 J1 7 H, BREEATHAMESREEAT LTSS, N
ZMIEE T RMEEFELH M. maEET, RTM52ZA
HENZER, W TR . R AT S e b @ AL K R
F, AEFEZING T HRASHF.

93



AR PR R 4R (o [ TR 0
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

MSBIC Activities of Corporate Social Responsibility

Our Bank is committed to the development of public service and
charities, as well as actively fulfills our corporate social
responsibility in such fields in China as environmental protection,

education, arts and culture.

During the “Global Volunteer Month” in 2016, employees of our
Bank actively participated in various corporate social responsibility
activities. The “Global Volunteer Month” is a global initiative of
Morgan Stanley, and employees are encouraged to actively
participate in  charity activities sponsored by Morgan
Stanley. Highlights of the “Global Volunteer Month™ activities in
2016 include:

1.  Beijing Children’s Hospital Visit

On June 8th 2016, Morgan Stanley employees brought books
and paintbrushes as well as love and care to Beijing Children’s
Hospital for the children there, and played games and sung
songs with them. This is the eighth consecutive years of the

program.
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2. Making Flash Cards for Underprivileged Children

Employees in Beijing gathered at Morgan Stanley Beijing
office to make educational flash cards for underprivileged
children in China. Expected to generate a total of 5,700 pieces
of laminated flash cards covering categories including

alphabets, colors, shapes, animals, matching pairs and numbers.

3. Clean-Up Projects

Employees in Beijing went to HuaiRou BaiHe River to clean
up rubbish along the river and learnt how to distinguish the
rubbish and what is outdoor self-help. Employees in Zhuhai
went Ocean Pack and did cleaning up, contributing to the

lovely city environment.

4.  Visit to Zhuhai Qianshan Elderly Nursing Home

On June 7, Morgan Stanley Zhuhai volunteers brought foods
and necessities of daily use as gift for elders in Qianshan
Elderly Nursing Home. Volunteers played games with elders
and listen to their needs and enlighten their hearts. The
employees look to further establish long term relationship with

the Center.
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(—)ERE R A - - - (66,750.00) 55,487,214.22 55,420,464.22

()RS - 5,548,721.42 (8,410,000.00) - 2,861,278.58 -

1 REBERAR - 5,548,721.42 - - (5,548,721.42) -

2. HREEL— ARG & - - (8,410,000.00) - 8,410,000.00 -
=. 2016 E 12 H 31 H&H 1,000,000,000.00 71,926,579.87  11,400,000.00 (63,750.00)  454,605,336.02  1,537,868,165.89

FEF

SERHEA BRANR R Hihsa il ROBANE  FAENEET

ARMT ARG ARG ARG ARTTT ARG

(MhE+H. 18) (BhE-t. 19) et 21)  (FfEH. 20) (MHE+. 22)

—. 2004412 A 31 HE 20154F 1 A 1 HASB  1,000,000,000.00 57482,438.73  12,060,000.00 182,531.36  323,948,065.73  1,393,673,035.82
=, WEEER - 8,895,419.72 7,750,000.00 (179,531.36) 72,308,777.49 88,774,665.85
(—)ErE W AT - - - (179,531.36) 88,954,197.21 88,774,665.85

()R 43 B - 8,895,419.72 7,750,000.00 - (16,645,419.72) -

1. REBERAR - 8,895,419.72 - - (8,895,419.72) -

2. HREL— R - - 7,750,000.00 - (7,750,000.00) -
=. 2015 4E 12 A 31 HAH 1,000,000,000.00 66,377,858.45  19,810,000.00 3,000.00  396,256,843.22  1,482,447,701.67

B 9 55 R R AL i 7 o
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BN 5% AARAT NS AT 2R ME S ARG A RS A7 R H RBUT S%BAF. A7k
B AT . MRE R E A RAR T IE, 2015 4 12 A 31 HA12016 4F 12 A 31 HARMAF
HUERE ST LER RN 15.5%H1 15%, AHRAT N R M55 47 3 ME % SR IEH) R &4 A7
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2,114,145.82
1,183,708.33

35,186,330.92
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL
(CHINA) LIMITED

Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2016

The financial statements and auditors’ report have been issued in Chinese. The English translation is prepared for your
reference only. If there is any conflict of meaning between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version prevails.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

De Shi Bao (Shen) Zi (17) No.P[01858]
[Translation]

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Morgan Stanley Bank International (China)
Limited (the "Bank"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2016, and the income
statement, the statement of changes in owner's equity and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and the notes to the financial statements.

1. Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements. This responsibility includes: (1) preparing the financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises to achieve fair presentation of the financial
statements; (2) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control that is necessary to enable
the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

2. Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with the Code of Ethics for Chinese Certified Public Accountants, and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider the internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT - continued

De Shi Bao (Shen) Zi (17) No.P[01858]
[Translation]

3. Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Bank present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2016, and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP.

China Certified Public Accountant
Shanghai, China

Ma, Henry Qing Hui
Qian, Benson Cong Ying

2017.4.10
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

TOTAL ASSETS

160

Note VII 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
ASSETS
Balances with the Central Bank 1 357,758,887.35 416,687,137.74
Due from banks 2 103,063,506.28 315,969,904.22
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 3 300,000,000.00 754,552,000.00
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 4 1,522,664,096.00 1,495,917,943.00
Interest receivable 5 38,623,839.00 28,977,740.29
Loans and advances to customers 6 273,000,000.00 196,000,000.00
Fixed assets 7 919,000.63 1,334,488.75
Intangible assets 8 1,221,386.25 2,407,956.53
Deferred tax assets 9 12,789,231.53 4,068,410.07
Other assets 10 34,586,026.52 21,537,753.00

2,644,625,973.56 3,237,453,333.60

(Continued)



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions
Asset sold with repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Employee benefit payable
Current tax payable
Interest payable
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OWNER'S EQUITY
Paid-in capital
Surplus reserves
Other comprehensive income
General reserves
Retained earnings

TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY

Note VII

11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
273.58 4,138.59

90,000,000.00  450,000,000.00
958,264,485.15 1,249,085,768.05
15,735,458.67 14,371,100.85
14,658,808.27 14,876,334.03
2,052,195.04 6,017,250.85
26,046,586.96  20,651,039.56

1,106,757,807.67 1,755,005,631.93

1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
71,926,579.87  66,377,858.45
(63,750.00) 3,000.00
11,400,000.00 19,810,000.00
454,605,336.02  396,256,843.22

1,537,868,165.89 1,482,447,701.67

2,644,625,973.56 3,237,453,333.60

The financial statements on pages 3 to 59 were signed by the following:

Head of the Bank
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Operating income
Net interest income
Interest income
Interest expenses
Net fee and commission income
Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expenses

Investment (losses)/ income
Gain/(loss) from changes in fair value
Exchange gain

Operating expenses

Tax and surcharges
Operating expenses
Impairment loss

Operating profit

Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Less: Income tax expenses
NET PROFIT

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,
NET OF INCOME TAX

Note VII

23

23
23

24

24
24

25
26

27
28
29

30

31

20

2016
RMB

141,021,267.95

2015
RMB

192,257,861.15

58,671,278.07

60,105,514.58

73,286,462.53
14,615,184.46

91,338,707.90

86,946,932.22
26,841,417.64

114,627,792.11

92,006,573.33
667,865.43

(3,722,686.99)
(20,847,097.00)
15,581,065.97

121,242,952.60
6,615,160.49

(3,669,040.00)
12,188,473.00
9,005,121.46

66,571,499.45

73,367,117.15

2,709,526.70 10,479,945.03
61,886,038.05  62,553,074.12
1,975,934.70 334,098.00
74,449,768.50  118,890,744.00
33.68 -
246,513.36 76.93

74,203,288.82

118,890,667.07

18,716,074.60

29,936,469.86

55,487,214.22

88,954,197.21

(66,750.00)

(179,531.36)

Included: Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.

(66,750.00)
55,420,464.22

(179,531.36)
88,774,665.85
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note VII

Cash flow from operating activities
Net decrease in balances with the Central Bank and due from banks
Net increase in customer deposits,
due to banks and other financial institutions
Net decrease in loans and advances to customers
Net increase in asset sold with repurchase agreements
Interest, fee and commission received
Other cash received relating to operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

Net increase in balances with the Central Bank and due from banks
Net increase in loans and advances to customers
Net decrease in customer deposits,
due to banks and other financial institutions
Net increase in placements with other financial institutions
Interest, fee and commission paid
Cash paid to and for employees
Tax payments
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities
Net cash flow from operating activities 33

Cash flow from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investments
Investment income received

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

Cash paid to purchase fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash paid to purchase investments

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities
Net cash flow from investing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.

2016
RMB

27,155,226.58

87,283,859.67
6,640,923.89

2015
RMB

197,247,453.42
100,000,000.00
156,000,000.00
186,411,599.20

758,957.35

121,080,010.14

640,418,009.97

80,000,000.00

290,825,147.91
360,000,000.00
19,248,105.70
35,977,855.46
30,485,969.56
16,296,556.05

4,383,800.15

33,047,793.62
34,778,469.54
23,371,753.28
21,203,891.86

832,833,634.68

116,785,708.45

(711,753,624.54)

523,632,301.52

7,919,721,970.00
50,274,898.16

15,942,686,970.00

22,770,254.99

7,969,996,868.16

15,965,457,224.99

214,760.95
7,967,315,220.00

1,797,390.70

15,949,622,730.00

7,967,529,980.95

15,951,420,120.70

2,466,887.21

14,037,104.29

8,982,517.48

4,979,288.03

(700,304,219.85)

542,648,693.84

1,001,230,411.15

458,581,717.31

300,926,191.30

1,001,230,411.15

163



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNER’S EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. Balance as at 31 December 2015
and 1 January 2016
II. Current year movement
(I) Total comprehensive income
(II) Distribution of profit
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general reserves

III. Balance as at 31 December 2016

I. Balance as at 31 December 2014
and 1 January 2015
II. Current year movement
(I) Total comprehensive income
(II) Distribution of profit
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general reserves

II1. Balance as at 31 December 2015

2016

Paid-in capital
RMB
(Note VII, 18)

Surplus reserves
RMB

(Note VII, 19)

Other comprehensive
General reserves income
RMB RMB
(Note VII, 21) (Note VII, 20)

Retained earnings
RMB

(Note VI, 22)

Total owner’s equity
RMB

1,000,000,000.00 66,377,858.45 19,810,000.00 3,000.00 396,256,843.22 1,482,447,701.67
- 5,548,721.42 (8,410,000.00) (66,750.00) 58,348,492 80 55.420,464.22
- - - (66,750.00) 55.487,214.22 55.420,464.22
- 5,548,721.42 (8,410,000.00) - 2,861278.58 -
- 5,548,721.42 - - (5,548.721.42) -
- - (8,410,000.00) - 8,410,000.00 -
1,000,000,000.00 71,926,579.87 11,400,000.00 (63,750.00) 454,605,336.02 1,537,868,165.89

2015

Paid-in capital
RMB
(Note VII, 18)

Surplus reserves
RMB

(Note VII, 19)

Other comprehensive
General reserves income
RMB RMB
(Note VII, 21) (Note VII, 20)

Retained earnings
RMB

(Note VII, 22)

Total owner’s equity
RMB

1,000,000,000.00 57,482.438.73 12,060,000.00 182,531.36 323,948,065.73 1,393,673,035.82
- 8,895.419.72 7,750,000.00 (179,531.36) 72,308,777.49 88,774,665.85
- - - (179,531.36) 88,954,197.21 88,774,665.85
- 8,895,419.72 7,750,000.00 - (16,645,419.72) -
- 8,895.419.72 - - (8,895.419.72) -
- - 7,750,000.00 - (7,750.,000.00) -
1,000,000,000.00 66,377,858.45 19,810,000.00 3,000.00 396,256,843.22 1,482,447,701.67

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.
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L.

IL.

I1I.

GENERAL

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited (the “Bank™), formerly known as Nan Tung
Bank Ltd., Zhuhai, was established by Nan Tung Investment (Macao) Limited which is wholly-
owned by Bank of China Macau Branch. The Bank was approved by the People’s Bank of China
(“PBOC”) to establish on 19 October 1984 and obtain its business license on 14 December 1984 .

With the approval from the China Banking Regulatory Commission ( “CBRC”) on 8 September
2006, Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited (“MSBIL”) took over 100% equity interest of
the Bank from Nan Tung Investment (Macao) Limited. The Bank renewed the obtained business
license after the change of shareholder. As of 31 December 2016, the Bank's registered capital is
RMB 1 billion, including RMB 820,284,000.00 for RMB business and Hong Kong Dollars
(“HKD”) equivalent of RMB 179,716,000.00 for foreign currency business. The Bank’s parent
company is Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited, and the ultimate parent company of the
Bank is Morgan Stanley. Details of capital contribution by the investor are described in Note VII,
18.

The Bank was approved by CBRC on 10 June 2009 to establish a branch in Beijing and obtained
a branch business license on 24 June 2009.

The registered address of the Bank is Room 2801-2807 and Room 2816, 28/F, Yuecai Building
No.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai, Guangdong, People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The Bank
is formed as a limited liability company.

The Bank is permitted to provide the following services to various customers for foreign currency
business and to customers except for China citizens in the territory of China for RMB business:
accepting public deposits; providing short-term, medium and long-term loans; undertaking
acceptance and discounting of negotiable instruments; purchasing and selling government bonds,
financial bonds, and other foreign currency securities except for shares; providing letters of credit
(L/C) service and guarantee; conducting domestic and international settlements; buying and selling
foreign currency for its own accounts or as agents; inter-bank borrowing and lending; providing
bank card service; providing safety box service; providing credit investigation and consultancy
service; and other businesses approved by CBRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bank has adopted the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“CASs”) issued by the
Ministry of Finance (“MOF”).

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS
ENTERPRISES

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with CASs, and present

truly and completely, the Bank's financial position as of 31 December 2016, and results of
operations and cash flows for the year then ended.
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IV.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The following significant accounting policies and accounting estimates are determined in
accordance with the CASs.

Accounting year
The Bank has adopted the calendar year as its accounting year, i.e. from 1 January to 31 December.

Functional currency

The Bank's functional currency is RMB, the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Bank operates. The reporting currency of the financial statements is RMB.

Basis of accounting and principle of measurement

The Bank has adopted the accrual basis of accounting. Except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value, the Bank has adopted the historical cost model as the principle of
measurement of the financial statements. Where assets are impaired, provisions for asset
impairment are accrued in accordance with relevant requirements.

Under historical cost model, the assets are initially recognized at the amount of cash and cash
equivalents paid or fair value of other consideration given to acquire an asset. The liabilities are
measured at the amount of asset or cash received bearing the present obligation or contractual
amount of present obligation or amount of cash or cash equivalents expected to pay to settle the
liability in daily activities.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are determined on aforementioned basis, regardless of
whether it is directly observable or estimated using valuation technique.

The fair value measurement is categorized into 3 levels based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Bank has the ability to access at the measurement date.

- Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and the deposits which can be paid on demand. Cash equivalents are

short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Iv.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Financial instruments

The Bank recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when the Bank becomes a party to the
contract of the financial instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized
at fair value. For financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), related transaction costs are charged to the profit or loss for the current period; for
financial assets and financial liabilities classified as other categories, related transaction costs are
included in the initial recognition amounts.

5.1 The effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period, using the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates the future cash flows considering
all contractual terms of financial assets and financial liabilities (without considering future credit
losses). The calculation includes all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate i.e. transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts etc.

5.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified into the following categories: FVTPL, ‘held-
to-maturity’ investments, ‘loans and receivables’ and ‘available-for-sale’ (“AFS”) financial assets.
For a financial asset traded in regular way, the Bank recognizes and derecognizes the financial asset
using trade date accounting.

The Bank’s financial assets classified as financial assets at FVTPL, and loans and receivables.
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL. The Bank's financial assets at FVTPL is held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: (1) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or (2) it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or (3) it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a designated and effective
hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to and must be
settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted price from an active market)
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value as well as dividends and interest income related to such financial assets
recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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Iv.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

5.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets - continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables of the Bank include balances with PBOC,
due from banks, placements with banks and other financial institutions, loans and advances to
customers, interest receivable and security deposits etc.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains or losses arising from derecognition, impairment or amortization are recognised in

profit or loss for the current period.

5.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses the carrying amount of financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, at each
balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence that financial assets are impaired the Bank
determines the amount of any impairment loss. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
refers to one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset which can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidences that financial assets are impaired include evidences arising from the following
events:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

(2) A breach of contract by the borrower, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(3) The lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting
a concession to the borrower;

(4) It has become probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

(5) The financial assets discontinue trading in an active market because of financial difficulties of
the issuer;

(6) Upon an overall assessment of a group of financial assets, observable data indicates that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial asset in the group of financial assets. Such observable data includes:

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the Bank;
- adverse changes in industry or country conditions of the borrowers that might affect the
repayment of the Bank of financial assets;

(7) Other objective evidence indicating there is an impairment of a financial asset.
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Iv.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

5.3 Impairment of financial assets - continued

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

If financial assets carried at amortised cost are impaired, the carrying amount of the financial assets

shall be reduced to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assets’
original effective interest rate (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). The

amount of reduction shall be recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss. If, after the

recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of financial assets increases and the increase

can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously

recognised impairment losses are reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying

amount of the financial assets at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the Bank conducts the impairment testing
individually. For a financial asset that is not individually significant, the Bank assesses the asset
individually for impairment or includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. For a financial asset that does
not need impairment after individual assessment (include financial assets individually material and
immaterial), the Bank reassesses the asset collectively with a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics for impairment. The financial asset that has impaired in individual
assessment does not need to be included in collectively assessment for impairment with a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics.

5.4 Transfers of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when: 1) the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; or 2) it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the transferee; or 3) it transfers the financial asset,
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership but has not retained
control of the financial asset.

Where the Bank does not either transfer or retain substantially all of the risks and rewards related
to the ownership of a financial asset, and if the Bank does not relinquish control over the financial
asset, it shall, to the extent of its continuous involvement in the financial asset, recognise it as a
related financial asset and recognise the relevant liability accordingly. The term "continuous
involvement in the transferred financial asset" shall refer to the risk level that the Bank faces as a
result of any change in the value of the financial asset.

If the transfer of an entire financial asset satisfies the conditions relating to derecognition, the
difference between the amounts described in the following two items shall be recorded in the profit
or loss for the current period: 1) the carrying amount of the transferred financial asset; and 2) the
sum of the total consideration received from the transfer and the cumulative amount of the change
in the fair value originally recorded in the owner's equity.
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Iv.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

5.4 Transfers of financial assets - continued

If the transfer of part of a financial asset satisfies the conditions for derecognition, the Bank shall
allocate the carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognise on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts (under such circumstances, the service asset retained shall be deemed to be a portion
of the financial asset which continues to be recognised). And the difference between the amounts
described in the following two items shall be recorded in the profit or loss for the current period: 1)
the carrying amount of the derecognised portion; and 2) the sum of the total consideration paid for
the derecognised portion and the portion of the cumulative amount of changes in the fair value
originally recorded in the owner's equity which corresponds to the derecognised portion (in the
event that the financial asset involved in the transfer is a financial asset available for sale).

A financial asset which sold with an agreement to repurchase in the near future, the Bank continues
to recognise it in the balance sheet. Proceeds from sales of such assets including the interest are
recognised as financial assets sold under repurchase agreement in the balance sheet. The difference
between selling price and repurchase price at the duration of the agreement is recognised by the
effective interest method as interest expense.

5.5 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

The Bank recognises the issued financial instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments
according to the economic substance of the contractual provisions of the financial instrument rather
than the legal form and the definition of financial liabilities or equity instruments.

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or
‘other financial liabilities’. The Bank's financial liabilities are other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities linked to and which must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity
instrument (without a quoted price in an active market) whose fair value cannot be measured
reliably are subsequently measured at cost. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method; gains or losses arising from derecognition or
amortisation are recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts between a guarantor and a creditor that when the debtor
defaults, the guarantor should perform agreed obligations. Financial guarantee contracts that are not
designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at the higher of the following two amounts: (1) the amount determined in
accordance with CAS No. 13 — Contingencies; and (2) the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the principles set out in CAS No. 14 —
Revenue.
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Iv.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

5.6 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability (or part of it) only when the underlying present
obligation (or part of it) is discharged. An agreement between the Bank (an existing borrower) and
an existing lender to replace the original financial liability with a new financial liability with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability.

When the Bank derecognises a financial liability or a part of it, the Bank recognises the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the financial liability) derecognised
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or new financial liabilities
assumed) in profit or loss.

5.7 Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if, and
only if, the Bank has a currently enforceable legal right to set off the recognised amounts and intends
to settle on a net basis, or to realize an asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In all other
situations they are presented separately in the balance sheet and are not offset.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for supply of services, or for administrative purposes
and have useful lives more than one accounting year. Fixed assets shall be recognised only when it
is probable that economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost
of the assets can be measured reliably. Fixed assets are initially measured at historical cost.

Subsequent expenditure incurred on a fixed asset is included in the cost of the fixed asset, only if it
is probable that economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Bank and the relevant
cost can be measured reliably. Meanwhile the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Other subsequent expenditure that fails to meet the capitalization criteria is recorded to profit or
loss when incurred.

Fixed assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives from the month after they are in
available condition for the intended use, applying the straight-line method. The useful lives,
estimated net residual values rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are as
follows:

Estimated Net Annual
Classes Useful Life Residual Value Depreciation Rate
Electronic and office equipment ~ 3-8years - 13%-33%

Estimated net residual value of a fixed asset is the estimated amount that the Bank would currently
obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were
already of the age and in the expected condition at the end of its useful life.
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Iv.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Fixed assets - continued

The fixed assets shall be derecognised when the asset is on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to be generated from its use or disposal. When fixed assets are sold, transferred,
retired or damaged, the Bank recognises the amount of any proceeds on disposal of the asset net of
the carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the current period.

The Bank reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value of fixed assets and the
depreciation method applied at least at each financial year-end. Any change in the useful life or
estimated net residual value of fixed assets or the depreciation method used is treated as a change
in an accounting estimate.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets of the Bank include software.

An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. An intangible asset with a finite useful life is
amortised using the straight-line method over its useful life when the asset is available for use. The
Bank estimates that the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life of 1-5 years.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the Bank reviews the useful life and amortisation
method at least at each financial year-end and makes adjustments if necessary.

Long-term prepayments

Long-term prepayments are various expenditures incurred but that should be allocated over the
current and future periods of more than one year. Long-term prepayments are evenly amortised
over their respective beneficial period.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

The Bank reviews at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that fixed assets and
intangible assets with finite useful life may be impaired. If any indication of that an asset may be
impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is estimated on the basis of the individual asset. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Bank determines the recoverable
amount of the group of assets to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and the present value of the future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the difference between
recoverable amount and carry amount is recognised as an impairment loss and recorded as profit or
loss for the current period.

Once an impairment loss of fixed assets and intangible assets with finite useful life is recognised, it
is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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Iv.

10.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Employee benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the Bank during an accounting period, the Bank shall
recognise the short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service as a
liability, and as an expense or the cost of an asset. For the employee welfare incurred, the Bank
shall recognise the actual amount of employee welfare as an expense or the cost of an asset when it
occurs. If the employee benefit is non-monetary, it shall be measured at fair value.

For social insurance including medical care, employment injury insurance, maternity insurance and
housing fund, as well as labor union cost and employee training expense, the Bank will calculate
the amount of employee benefit according to defined base and percentage and recognise as a
liability and an expense or the cost of an asset.

The Bank shall recognise the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan, in exchange for
the service rendered by an employee during an accounting period, as a liability and as an expense
or the cost of an asset.

The Bank shall recognise a liability and expense for termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates:

- when the Bank can no longer unilaterally withdraw the offer of those benefits induced from
terminating employment relationship or lay off plan; and

- when the Bank recognises costs for a restructuring and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

For the defined benefit plan, the Bank uses the projected unit credit method to determine the present
value of its defined benefit obligations and attributes the defined benefit obligation to periods of
service according to the formula. The defined benefit cost can be categorized as follows:

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost and gains and losses on settlement)
in profit or loss;

- net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset (including interest income on plan assets,
interest expense on the defined benefit obligation and interest on the effect of the asset ceiling)
in profit or loss; and

- changes from remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset are recognized as expenses
in current period or as cost of assets. Changes from remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability or asset (including actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset, change in the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset), are
recognized in other comprehensive income.
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Iv.

11.

12.

13.

14.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
General reserves

Pursuant to CAIJIN [2012] No. 20 “Administrative Rules of Provisions for Financial Enterprise”
issued by the MOF and the related regulations on 30 March 2012, the financial institutions should
select the internal model method or standard method according to their actual situation and make
quantitative analysis of exposures in risk assets to determine the potential risk estimate. If the risk
estimate is higher than the impairment of assets, the difference should be recorded as general
reserves, otherwise no provision of general reserves is required. In principle, the general reserves
should not be less than 1.5% of the risk assets.

The Bank provides 1.5% of risk assets balance at the balance sheet date as the general reserves
effective at the end of 2016. The provision of general reserves is considered as the current
distribution of profits and presented separately in the owner's equity.

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are determined at amortised costs of relevant financial assets and
financial liabilities using the effective interest rate, and recognised to profit or loss in the current
period. If the difference between effective interest rate and contract interest rate is small, the
contract interest method is used.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the related services are delivered on an accrual
basis.

Government grants

Government grants are the transfer of monetary assets or non-monetary assets from the Government
to the Bank at no consideration. A government grant is recognised when the Bank complies with
the conditions attaching to the grant and when the Bank is able to receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, the item is measured at the
amount received or receivable.

A government grant which relates to an asset is recognised as deferred income, and evenly
amortised to profit or loss over the useful life of the related asset.

For a government grant which relates to income, if the grant is a compensation for related expenses
or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognised as deferred income, and
recognised in profit or loss over the periods in which the related costs are recognised; if the grant is
a compensation for related expenses or losses already incurred, the grant is recognised immediately
in profit or loss for the current period.
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Iv.

15.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Income tax
Income tax expenses comprise current tax expense and deferred tax expense.

15.1 Current tax

At the balance sheet date, the current income tax liabilities (or assets) for the current period or
previous periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid (or recoverable) according to the
requirements of tax law.

15.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences arising from the difference between the carrying amount of an asset or
liability and its tax base, or the difference between the tax base and the carrying amount of those
items that are not recognised as assets or liabilities but have a tax base that can be determined
according to tax laws, are recognised as deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities using the
balance sheet liability method.

The Bank recognises a deferred tax asset for the carry forward of unused deductible losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
according to the requirements of tax laws.

Current income tax and deferred tax is recognised in current year profit and loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equity, in which case
the current tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income or equity.

At the balance sheet date, the Bank reviews the carrying amount of any deferred tax asset. If it is
probable that sufficient taxable profits will not be available in future periods to allow the benefit of
the deferred tax asset to be utilized, the carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reduced. Any
such reduction in amount is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

15.3 Tax asset and tax liability offset

When the Bank has a legal right to offset the recognised amounts and intends to either settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, tax asset and tax liability of
current period are offset and the net amount is presented on the balance sheet.

When the Bank has a legal right to offset the current income tax assets and current income tax
liabilities, the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity, or different taxable entities which intend
to either settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, are reported on a net basis.
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Iv.

16.

17.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Translation of transactions denominated in foreign currencies

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated by applying the spot exchange
rate at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional
currency at the spot exchange rate of the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the
differences between the spot exchange rate of the balance sheet date and the exchange rates used
on initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss for the
current period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are carried at historical cost
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; non-monetary assets and liabilities carried
at fair value and denominated in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Differences between the translated amount at functional
currency and the original amount at functional currency are accounted for as changes in fair value
(including changes in exchange rates) in profit or loss for the period.

Leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred. An operating lease is a lease other than

a finance lease.

The Bank records operating lease as lessee

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term
to the cost of the assets or to profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred. The initial
expenses are recorded as profit or loss when incurred. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss
in the period in which they are actually incurred.
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V.

BASIS OF DETERMINING SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY
ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the application of the Bank’s accounting policies, which are described in Note IV, the Bank is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of items in the
financial statements that cannot be measured accurately. These judgments, estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience of the Bank's management as well as other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The aforementioned judgements, estimates and assumptions are reviewed regularly on a going
concern basis. The effect of a change in accounting estimate is recognised in the period of the
change, if the change affects that period only; or recognised in the period of the change and future
periods, if the change affects both current and future periods.

Key assumptions and uncertainties in accounting estimates

Fair value of financial instruments

For the financial instrument without active trading market, the Bank determines its fair value by
various valuation techniques. The valuation techniques that the Bank adopts include discounted
cash flow model. The Bank needs to make estimation such as the credit risks, market volatility and
correlation of itself and counterparties. Any changes in the assumptions made will impact the fair
values of the financial instruments.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

Besides the loan loss provision provided before each quarter-end, the Bank reviews its loan
portfolios to assess impairment on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be provided, the Bank makes judgments as to whether there is any objective evidence that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from loan portfolios if there is no
such decrease identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. The objective evidence may
include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a Bank (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the Bank. The Bank uses estimates based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar
to those in the portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Income tax

There are a number of transactions for which the final tax determination and calculation is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business operation. In particular, the deductibility of certain items is
subjected to government approval. Where the final tax outcome is different from the amount that
was initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the period during which such a determination is made.

177
-20-



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

V.

VI

BASIS OF DETERMINING SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY
ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Key assumptions and uncertainties in accounting estimates - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the assets are realized or the liabilities are settled, according to the requirements of tax
laws. Within the limit of sufficient available taxable profits against which the loss can be deductible,
the Bank recognises deferred tax assets against the deductible losses. This requires management
judgment to estimate the time of taxable profits and appropriate tax rate to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Depreciation period of fixed assets

For fixed assets with finite useful life, the Bank estimates the period over which future economic
benefits attributable to the asset will be flowed to the Bank, and depreciates the fixed assets over
the estimated period.

Amortisation period of intangible assets

For intangible assets with finite useful life, the Bank estimates the period over which future
economic benefits attributable to the asset will be flowed to the Bank, and amortises the intangible
assets over the estimated period.

TAXATION

Income tax

The applicable tax rate for year 2016 is 25% (2015:25%). The Branch of the Bank implements the
management method of income tax collection in terms of unified calculation, hierarchical
management, local prepaid, unitary liquidation and fiscal adjustment in accordance with “The
Temporary Measurement of Corporate Income Tax Allocation and Budget Management for
Multiple Provinces and Cities”. (Cai Yu [2012] No.40) and “The Management Methodology of
Cross-regional Operating Corporate Income Tax Collection Unitarily for Cross-regional Operation
Enterprise” (Guo Fa [2012] No. 57).

Business tax
The business tax rate is 5%.

Value-added tax

According to The Circular issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation on March 23,2016 (Cai Shui Fa[2016] No.36),the reform
program to replace the business tax with a value-added tax will be expanded nationwide on May 1
2016 in pilot sectors which include Construction, Real Estate, Financial Service and Life service
industry. Since May 1, 2016, the Bank is subject to pay value-added tax instead of business tax.

The tax payable should be the balance between output tax and input tax. The output tax should be
calculated based on the taxable financial service income at the rate of 6% according to applicable

tax laws and regulations.
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TAXATION - continued

Other tax

Urban Maintenance and Construction Tax is 7% of business tax or value-added tax.

Education Surcharge is 3% of business tax or value-added tax, while Local Education Surcharge is

2% of business tax or value-added tax.

According to The Circular issued by Zhuhai Municipal Government (Yue Di Shui Fa[2015] No.
119), the Zhuhai Head Office is obliged to pay Embankment Maintenance Fee at the rate 0£ 0.072%
on taxable revenue from 1 January to 31 March 2016. According to (Yue Fa Gai Jia Ge[2016] No.
180), since 1 April 2016, the Embankment Maintenance Fee is exempted in Zhuhai.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES

BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

Statutory reserves with the Central Bank
Other deposits with the Central Bank

31/12/2016
RMB

160,382,979.67
197,375,907.68

31/12/2015
RMB

187,538,206.25
229,148,931.49

357,758,887.35

416,687,137.74

Statutory reserves are placed according to the relevant regulations promulgated by the PBOC. In
accordance with “Notice on Raising Reserve Rate for Foreign Currency Deposits Issued by the
People’s Bank of China” [YinFa (2007) No.134], reserve rate for all foreign currency deposits of
financial institutions was adjusted to 5% effective 15 May 2007. Statutory reserve for foreign
currency business is deposited at 5% of the month-end balances of the relevant deposit items and is
non-interest bearing. The PBOC reserve rate for all RMB deposits of financial institutions was 15.5%
on 31 December 2015 and 15% on 31 December 2016. The statutory reserves for RMB business is
deposited at PBOC reserve rate of the RMB deposits balance at the end of every ten days. The

interest rate of statutory reserve for RMB business is 1.62%.

DUE FROM BANKS

Due from domestic banks
Due from overseas banks

Total
Less: Provision of impairment of due from banks

Net book value
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31/12/2016
RMB

6,359,578.51
97,190,705.11

31/12/2015
RMB

5,616,052.55
311,913,427.11

103,550,283.62

317,529,479.66

486,777.34

1,559,575.44

103,063,506.28

315,969,904.22
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Placements with domestic financial institutions

31/12/2016
RMB

300,000,000.00

31/12/2015
RMB

754,552,000.00

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets held for trading
- Financial institution bonds
- Government bonds

Total

31/12/2016
RMB

39,844,756.00

31/12/2015
RMB

1,482,819,340.00 1,495,917,943.00

1,522,664,096.00 1,495,917,943.00

As of balance sheet date, the carrying amount of financial assets held for trading pledged for
repurchase agreements (Note VII, 12) was RMB90,000,000.00 (31/12/2015: RMB450,000,000.00).

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

(1) Movement in interest receivable is as follows:

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Received during the year

Closing balance

(2) Categorized by nature is as follows:

Interest receivable from
- Balances with the Central Bank and due from banks
- Placements with banks and other financial institutions
- Loans and advances to customers
- Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Total
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31/12/2016
RMB

28,977,740.29
73,286,462.53

31/12/2015
RMB

51,864,291.93
86,946,932.22

(63,640,363.82) (109,833,483.86)

38,623,839.00

28,977,740.29

31/12/2016
RMB

139,653.93
2,114,145.82
1,183,708.33

35,186,330.92

31/12/2015
RMB

140,974.10
2,145,537.10
1,353,333.33

25,337,895.76

38,623,839.00

28,977,740.29
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6. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(1) Categorized by nature is as follows:

Corporate loans and advances
Less: Loan loss provision

Net book value

(2) Categorized by industry are as follows:

31/12/2016
RMB
Wholesale and retail 80,000,000.00
Leasing and commercial
service 200,000,000.00
Total 280,000,000.00
Less: Loan loss provision 7,000,000.00

Net book value 273,000,000.00

Proportion
(%)

28.57

71.43

100.00

196,000,000.00

(3) Categorized by registered location of the borrowers are as follows:

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
280,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
7,000,000.00 4,000,000.00
273,000,000.00 196,000,000.00
31/12/2015 Proportion
RMB (%)
200,000,000.00 100.00
200,000,000.00 100.00
4,000,000.00

31/12/2016 Proportion 31/12/2015 Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Northern China 180,000,000.00 64.29 100,000,000.00 50.00
Eastern China 100,000,000.00 35.71 100,000,000.00 50.00
Total 280,000,000.00 100.00 200,000,000.00 100.00
Less: Loan loss provision 7,000,000.00 4,000,000.00
Net book value 273,000,000.00 196,000,000.00
(4) Categorized by contract agreement terms and guarantee pattern are as follows:
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Within a year 1 year to 5 years Within a year 1 year to 5 years
including lyear) (including 5 years Over 5 years Total including lyear) (including 5 years) Over 5 years Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Clean loans 200,000,000.00 - 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Pledged loans 80,000,000.00 80,000,000.00 - -
Total 200,000,000.00 80,000,000.00 280,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Less: Loan loss provision 7,000,000.00 4,000,000.00
Net book value 7&@0,0()0.00 Jgg)@i)%@
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6. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS - continued

(5) Loan loss reserves:

2016

Opening balance
Received during the year

Closing balance

2015

Opening balance
Received during the year

Closing balance

7. FIXED ASSETS

Cost
Opening balance
Addition during the year
Disposal during the year

Closing balance

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance
Charge for the year
Disposal during the year

Closing balance

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

Individual evaluation Combination evaluation Total
RMB RMB RMB

- 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00

- 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00

- 7,000,000.00 7,000,000.00
Individual evaluation Combination evaluation Total
RMB RMB RMB

- 4,500,000.00 4,500,000.00

- (500,000.00) (500,000.00)

- 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00

Electronic and office equipment
RMB

16,491,868.21
214,760.95
(949,546.60)

15,757,082.56

15,157,379.46
630,249.07
(949,546.60)

14,838,081.93

1,334,488.75

919,000.63
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VII.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
Opening balance
Addition during the year

Closing balance

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

9. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Software
RMB

37,345,589.16

37,345,589.16

34,937,632.63
1,186,570.28

36,124,202.91

2,407,956.53

1,221,386.25

(1) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed in gross as follows:

Deductible temporary differences

Deferred tax assets

31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Long-term service benefit & employee
benefit 10,112,453.53 8,859,469.87 2,528,113.38 2,214,867.47
Intangible asset amortisation
difference between tax and
accounting 24,059,355.23 20,837,489.61 6,014,838.81 5,209,372.40
Change in fair value of
financial assets held for trading 11,312,934.70 - 2,828,233.68 -
Impairment on financial assets 1,845,669.95 - 461,417.49 -
Unrecognized revenue for the year 3,826,512.67 - 956,628.17 -
Total 51,156,926.08 29,696,959.48 12,789,231.53 7,424,239.87

Taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax liabilities

31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Impairment on financial assets - 3,889,156.86 - 972,289.22
Fair value of financial assets
held for trading - 9,534,162.30 - 2,383,540.58
Total - 13,423,319.16 - 3,355,829.80
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VII.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

9. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - continued

(2) The Bank nets off deferred tax assets and liabilities and presents in net basis as follows:

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
Deferred tax assets 12,789,231.53 7,424,239.87
Deferred tax liabilities - 3,355,829.80
Net total 12,789,231.53 4,068,410.07
10. OTHER ASSETS
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
Prepaid expenses (1) 1,724,342.18 2,079,765.01
Consulting fee receivables 31,573,399.35 18,095,155.43
Security deposits 1,434,777.90 1,434,777.90
Long-term prepayments (2) 10,585.33 20,356.40
Others 1,814.37 4,485.95
Total 34,744,919.13 21,634,540.69
Less: Provision of losses of receivables 158,892.61 96,787.69
Net book value 34,586,026.52 21,537,753.00

(1) Prepaid expenses mainly represent prepaid computer system expense and prepaid rental expense.
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VII. FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
10. OTHER ASSETS - continued

(2) Long-term prepayments

Cost
Opening and closing balance

Amortization
Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value

Leasehold improvement
RMB

12,895,962.48

12,875,606.08
9,771.07

12,885,377.15

Opening balance 20,356.40
Closing balance 10,585.33
11.  DUE TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
Due to domestic financial institutions 273.58 4,138.59
12.  ASSET SOLD WITH REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
Categorized by collateral:
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
Bonds 90,000,000.00  450,000,000.00
13.  CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
Current deposits
Corporate 6,738,266.40 12,457,629.77
Individual 2,065.82 1,934.60
Time deposits
Corporate 947,352,077.15 1,232,556,880.36
Individual 4,172,075.78 4,069,323.32
Total 958,264,485.15 1,249,085,768.05
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAYABLE

Accruals Payments
1/1/2016 for the year for the year 31/12/2016
RMB RMB RMB RMB

Salaries, bonuses,

allowances and subsidies 8,460,513.43 31,298,654.16 (30,099,841.82) 9,659,325.77
Social security contributions 197,008.24 2,393,163.12 (2,427,370.73) 162,800.63
Housing - 1,108,285.00 (1,108,285.00) -
Compensation 647,669.40 706,111.00 (1,353,780.40) -
Defined benefit plan (1) 5,065,909.78 1,836,000.00 (988,577.51) 5,913,332.27
Total 14,371,100.85 37,342,213.28 (35,977,855.46) 15,735,458.67

(1) Defined benefit plan (“DBP”)

The Bank provides DBP related to retirement and termination for the Bank’s employees in
addition to the government retirement plan. Monthly contributions of the plan are accrued based
on base salary with contribution rate of 8% (subject to a maximum of RMBI10,000 of
employer’s provision per month). Effective 1 January 2012, for employees who have over 10
years of services, the above contributions of the plan are accrued based on base salary with
contribution rate of 12% (subject to a maximum of RMB12,000 of employer’s provision per
month). The plan benefits are equal to the accrued contributions plus interest and are payable
upon the retirement or the resignation of the employees. Vesting percentage will have a 20%
increase for each full year of firm services, until 100% for 5 full years of firm services.

The Bank evaluates the present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation on an actuarial
basis. The present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation, current service cost and past

service cost are all measured at projected unit credit method.

(a) The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Discount rate 3.00% 2.80%
Expected growth rate of salaries 7.00% 7.00%
Interest rate of defined benefit plan 1.75% 2.00%

31/12/2016 and 31/12/2015

Mortality rate China Life Table 2002-2003
Termination rate 15%
Retirement age 65
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAYABLE - continued

(1) Defined benefit plan (“DBP”) - continued

(b) The amounts recognised in operating expenses in respect of DBP are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation

Total

(c) DBP obligation included in employee benefit payable as followings:

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation

Net liability

Retirement benefit obligation

(d) Movements in net liability of DBP were as follows:

Opening

Defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss

-Current service cost

-Interest cost

Defined benefit cost recognised in other
comprehensive income

-Actuarial losses/ (gains)

Benefits paid

Transfer in

Closing

2016 2015
RMB RMB
1,612,000.00 1,415,000.04
135,000.00 148,000.00
1,747,000.00 1,563,000.04
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
5,913,332.27 5,065,909.78
5,913,332.27 5,065,909.78
5,913,332.27 5,065,909.78
2016 2015
RMB RMB
5,065,909.78 5,096,323.35
1,612,000.00 1,415,000.04
135,000.00 148,000.00
89,000.00 239,375.15
(988,577.51) (836,788.76)
- (996,000.00)
5,913,332.27 5,065,909.78

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31 December 2016 is 3 years (31/12/2015: 3
years). The Bank expects to make a contribution of RMB635,000.00 to the DBP during the

next financial year .

The Bank conducted a sensitivity analysis on key assumptions of DBP (discount rate, growth
rate of salaries and etc.), the result of sensitivity analysis indicated that the key assumptions
had no significant impact on the preseng¥alue of DBP obligation.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

CURRENT TAX PAYABLE

Corporate income tax
Business tax and surcharge
Individual income tax
Value added tax payable

Total

INTEREST PAYABLE

(1) Movement in interest payable is as follows:

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Payment during the year

Closing balance

(2) Categorized by nature is as follows:

)

Interest payable
- Customer deposits
- Due to banks and other financial institutions
- Repurchase agreements

Total

188

31/12/2016
RMB

14,059,249.77

490,497.99
109,060.51

31/12/2015
RMB

10,596,887.27
3,922,974.59
356,472.17

14,658,808.27

14,876,334.03

31/12/2016
RMB

6,017,250.85
14,615,184.46

(18,580,240.27)

31/12/2015
RMB

5,608,466.34
26,841,417.64
(26,432,633.13)

2,052,195.04 6,017,250.85
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
2,032,222.44 5,778,387.46
- 0.37
19,972.60 238,863.02
2,052,195.04 6,017,250.85
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

OTHER LIABILITIES

Other payables (1)
Accrued expenses
Deferred income
Provisions

Total

(1) Other payables

Payable for long-term assets purchases
Payable to related parties
Others

Total

PAID-IN CAPITAL

31/12/2016
RMB

19,049,072.60
2,582,980.58
537,515.86
3,877,017.92

31/12/2015
RMB

18,227,841.31
2,115,375.05
307,823.20

26,046,586.96

20,651,039.56

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
17,033,624.04 15,318,229.81

- 996,000.00
2,015,448.56 1,913,611.50
19,049,072.60 18,227,841.31

The registered capital of the Bank is RMB 1,000,000,000.00, and has been fully paid up. Details of
capital contributions from the investor according to the Bank's Articles of Association are as follows:

31/12/2016&31/12/2015
Proportion

Amount

Morgan Stanley Bank International RMB 100% 1,000,000,000.00

The paid-in capital has been verified by Guangdong HengXin DeLv CPA firm with the capital
verification reports of HengDe Zhu Yan No.72 (2002) and HengDe Zhu Yan No.11 (2007)
respectively.

189
232



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

VIIL

19.

20.

21.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

SURPLUS RESERVES

Opening balance
Addition during the year

Closing balance

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Opening balance
Movement during the year
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Included: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
before income tax

Deferred tax effect of the changes

Closing balance

2016
RMB

66,377,858.45
5,548,721.42

2015
RMB

57,482,438.73
8,895,419.72

71,926,579.87

66,377,858.45

2016 2015
RMB RMB
3,000.00 182,531.36
(66,750.00)  (179,531.36)
(89,000.00)  (239,375.15)
22,250.00 59,843.79
(63,750.00) 3,000.00

The other comprehensive income only comprised of only changes from remeasurement of defined

benefit obligation.

GENERAL RESERVES

Opening balance
Addition/ Reversal during the year

Closing balance
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2016
RMB

19,810,000.00
(8,410,000.00)

2015
RMB

12,060,000.00
7,750,000.00

11,400,000.00

19,810,000.00
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23.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
RETAINED EARNINGS

2016
RMB

2015
RMB

396,256,843.22
55,487,214.22
(5,548,721.42)

323,948,065.73
88,954,197.21
(8,895,419.72)

Opening balance
Net profit/ (loss) for the year

Appropriation to surplus reserves (1)
(Appropriation)/ Reversal to general reserves (2)

Closing balance

(1) Surplus reserves

8,410,000.00

(7,750,000.00)

454,605,336.02

396,256,843.22

According to the Board meeting resolution, the Bank appropriates 10% of profit after tax to the
surplus reserves effective year 2007 until the Board amends the distribution policy in the future

periods.

(2) General reserves

According to CAIJIN [2012] No. 20 “ Administrative Rules of Provisions for Financial Enterprise ”
issued by the MOF and the related regulations, the Bank appropriates 1.5% to general reserves

based on total risk assets at the end of year since year 2012.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income
- Due from banks
- Balances with the Central Bank
- Placements with banks and other financial institutions
- Resale agreements
- Financial assets as fair value through profit or loss
- Loans and advances to customers

Subtotal

Interest expenses
- Due to banks and other financial institutions
- Placements from banks and other financial institutions
- Repurchase agreements
- Customer deposits

Subtotal

Net interest income
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2016
RMB

44,771.64
4,592,559.01
16,907,417.44

44,149,149.99
7,592,564.45

2015
RMB

42,347.48
4,307,690.40
18,805,693.26
6,213.69
49,032,292.96
14,752,694.43

73,286,462.53 86,946,932.22
6.31 12.27
33,700.12 19,944.44
1,213,929.93 3,629,310.72

13,367,548.10

23,192,150.21

14,615,184.46

26,841,417.64

58,671,278.07

60,105,514.58
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25.

26.

27.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
-Consulting fee
-Arrangement fee for syndicated loans
-Settlement and clearing fee
-Others

Subtotal

Fee and commission expenses
-Trading center expenses
-Other fee expenses

Subtotal

Net fee and commission income

INVESTMENT LOSSES

Disposal losses of financial assets held for trading

GAIN/(LOSSES) FROM CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE

Financial assets held for trading

TAX AND SURCHARGES

Business tax
Surcharges

Total
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2016
RMB

85,140,314.13
6,811,776.71
6,760.95
47,721.54

2015
RMB

88,649,700.02
32,281,387.32
5,621.87
306,243.39

92,006,573.33

121,242,952.60

233,064.21 577,396.52
434,801.22 6,037,763.97
667,865.43 6,615,160.49

91,338,707.90

114,627,792.11

2016
RMB

(3,722,686.99)

2015
RMB

(3,669,040.00)

2016 2015
RMB RMB
(20,847,097.00)  12,188,473.00
2016 2015
RMB RMB
2,327,515.64 9,265,050.48

382,011.06 1,214,894.55
2,709,526.70 10,479,945.03
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28.

29.

30.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

OPERATING EXPENSES

Staff salaries and welfare

Intangible assets amortisation

Operating lease rentals and utilities expenses

Electrical equipment maintenance and
telecommunication fees

Travelling expenses

Depreciation
Service fees

Fees to regulators
Entertainment expenses
Long-term prepayments amortisation

Taxes
Others

Total

IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Impairment loss of loans and advances to customers
Impairment loss of due from banks
Impairment loss of receivables

Total

2016
RMB

37,253,213.28
1,186,570.28
7,576,974.96

5,225,303.03
2,029,484.14
630,249.07
1,154,515.24
577,930.50
93,933.14
9,771.07
10,245.22
6,137,848.12

2015
RMB

35,193,247.98
809,295.61
8,175,818.30

4,211,810.75
3,360,366.71
1,047,037.63
1,480,000.00
562,033.50
113,066.40
18,911.18
28,341.73
7,553,144.33

61,886,038.05

62,553,074.12

2016 2015
RMB RMB
3,000,000.00 (500,000.00)
(1,086,170.22) 740,501.79
62,104.92 93,596.21
1,975,934.70 334,098.00

As of 31 December 2016, the loan loss provision ratio of the Bank is 2.5%. The provision coverage
ratio is not applicable because the Bank has nil non-performing loans.

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

Tax overdue fine
Donation outlay

Total

2016 2015
RMB RMB
246,468.36 76.93
45.00 -
246,513.36 76.93
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VII.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

31. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

2016 2015

RMB RMB
Income tax expenses 27,414,646.06 25,260,780.05
Deferred tax expenses (8,698,571.46) 4,675,663.81
Adjustment for last year income tax - 26.00
Include: Income tax expenses - 26.00
Total 18,716,074.60  29,936,469.86

Reconciliation of income tax expenses to accounting profits is as follows:

2016 2015
RMB RMB
Accounting profit 74,203,288.82  118,890,667.07
Tax calculated at tax rate 25% 18,550,822.20 29,722,666.77
Add: Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 329,911.82 234,708.06
Adjustment for last year income tax - 26.00
Less: Non-taxable income 164,659.42 20,930.97
Income tax expenses 18,716,074.60 29,936,469.86
32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2016 2015
RMB RMB
Balances with the Central Bank 357,758,887.35 416,687,137.74
Statutory reserve (160,382,979.67) (187,538,206.25)
Original maturity within 3 months:
Due from banks 103,550,283.62 317,529,479.66
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions - 454,552,000.00
Total 300,926,191.30 1,001,230,411.15
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33.

34.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

CASH FLOW STATEMENT SUPPLEMENTARYINFORMATION

2016
RMB

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities

Net profit

Add: Impairment loss
Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of long-term prepayments
Investment loss
Bond interest income
(Gains) / losses from changes in fair value
Deferred tax expenses
Decrease/ (increase) in operating receivables
Increase/ (decrease) in operating payables

Net cash flow from operating activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
Less: Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

Net increase/ (decrease) cash and cash equivalents

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

55,487,214.44
1,975,934.70
630,249.07
1,186,570.28
9,771.08
3,722,686.99
(44,149,149.99)
20,847,097.00
(8,698,571.46)
(95,315,850.58)
(647,449,575.85)

2015

88,954,197.21
334,098.00
1,047,037.63
809,295.61
18,911.18
3,669,040.00
(49,038,506.65)
(12,188,473.00)
4,675,663.81
117,179,292.21
368,171,745.52

(711,753,624.54)

523,632,301.52

300,926,191.30 1,001,230,411.15

1,001,230,411.15 458,581,717.31

(700,304,219.85)

542,648,693.84

In the daily business, the Bank transfers the recognized financial assets to the third party in some
transactions. The financial assets are derecognized if the derecognition conditions satisfied. If the
Bank retains substantially all of the risks and rewards related to the ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the related financial asset will not be derecognised.

Asset sold with repurchase agreements

Asset sold with repurchase agreements are transactions in which the Bank sells a financial asset and
simultaneously agrees to repurchase it at a fixed price on a future date. Since the repurchase prices
are fixed, the Bank is still exposed to substantially all the credit risks and market risks and rewards
of those assets sold. These financial assets, which the Bank does not have the ability to use during
the term of the arrangements, are not derecognised from the financial statements but regarded as
collateral for the secured lending. In addition, the Bank recognises a financial liability for cash
received. For all these arrangements, the counterparties have recourse not only to the transferred
financial assets.

195
238



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

VIL

34.

35.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - continued

Asset sold with repurchase agreements - continued

As at 31 December 2016, the Bank entered into bonds related repurchase agreements with certain
counterparties. The proceeds from selling bonds are presented as asset sold with repurchase
agreements (Note VII, 12). The following table provides a summary of carrying amounts related to
transferred financial assets that are not derecognised and associated liabilities:

2016 2015
RMB RMB
Carrying amount of selling financial assets
- Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 99,730,279.00  453,660,400.00
Carrying amount of related financial liabilities 90,000,000.00  450,000,000.00

SEGMENT INFORMATION

According to the Bank's internal organizational structure, regulatory requirements and internal
reporting system, the Bank's businesses are divided into following reporting segments, which are
based on the Bank's operational location. The Bank's management periodically evaluates operating
results of these segments reporting to determine resources allocation and evaluates operating results.

Information of segment reporting is disclosed based on the accounting policies and measurement
used when segments report is provided to the management. These measurement bases are consistent
with the accounting policies and measurement used when preparing the financial statements.
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35.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment report information:

2016
Head Office Beijing Branch Elimination Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB

111,486,981.85
34,999,337.19

Operating income

Net interest income

Include:

Net interest income
between segments

Net fee and
commission income

Net other income

(5,449,088.65)

85,100,994.35
(8,613,349.69)

29,534,286.10
23,671,940.88
5,449,088.65

6,237,713.55
(375,368.33)

141,021,267.95
58,671,278.07

91,338,707.90
(8,988,718.02)

Operating expenses 39,300,397.17

27,271,102.28

66,571,499.45

Operating profit 72,186,584.68

2,263,183.82

74,449,768.50

Segment assets 2,460,132,126.11

587,577,273.07

403,083,425.62

2,644,625,973.56

Segment liabilities 880,285,658.77

529,555,574.52

303,083,425.62

1,106,757,807.67

Additional information:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,760,371.00
Capital expenditures 101,409.47
Include: Expenditures on
purchasing fixed assets 101,409.47
Expenditures on purchasing
intangible assets -
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66,219.42
113,351.48

113,351.48

1,826,590.42
214,760.95

214,760.95
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35.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment report information - continued

Operating income

Net interest income

Include:

Net interest income
between segments

Net fee and
commission income

Net other income

Operating expenses
Operating profit
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

Additional information:

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditures

Include: Expenditures on
purchasing fixed assets

2015
Head Office Beijing Branch Elimination Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB
145,495,398.54 46,762,462.61 - 192,257,861.15

39,652,660.48

1,722,193.65

87,991,572.51
17,851,165.55

20,452,854.10

(1,722,193.65)

26,636,219.60
(326,611.09)

60,105,514.58

114,627,792.11
17,524,554.46

41,459,408.70

31,907,708.45

73,367,117.15

104,035,989.84

14,854,754.16

118,890,744.00

2,930,278,036.58

416,304,735.11

109,129,438.09

3,237,453,333.60

1,403,657,068.82

360,478,001.20

9,129,438.09

1,755,005,631.93

1,533,555.25
1,748,601.70

290,601.70

Expenditures on purchasing

intangible assets
/long-term assets

1,458,000.00
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341,689.17
48,789.00

48,789.00

1,875,244.42
1,797,390.70
339,390.70

1,458,000.00
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VII.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
35. SEGMENT INFORMATION- continued

(1) External revenue categorized by products or businesses

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
Trading - emerging market 58,033 93,130
Fixed income business 82,988 99,128
Total 141,021 192,258
(2) External revenue categorized by regions
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
Domestic external revenue 55,341 103,180
Overseas external revenue 85,680 89,078
Total 141,021 192,258

(3) Non-current assets categorized by assets locations
The Bank's non-current assets are located in China.

(4) Key client's dependency

The Bank does not have significant dependency relationship with non-related party.

Inter-segment transfers are measured on the basis of actual transaction price for such transfers.
Segment revenue and segment expenses are determined on the basis of actual revenue and

expenses of the segments respectively.

VIII. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT MATTERS

1. CREDIT COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEE

31/12/2016
RMB

Letters of guarantee 3,234,400.00

31/12/2015

RMB

3,234,400.00
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VIII.

2.

IX.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT MATTERS - continued
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank had the following commitments in respect of non-cancellable
operating leases:

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
The minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases:
Within one year 4,370 6,114
In the second year 74 4,370
In the third year - 74
Total 4,444 10,558

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS

Related party with controlling relationship

Share holding
Name Place of registration Principal business Registered capital in the Bank
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited United Kingdom Financial service ~ GBP 340,000,000.00 100%

There are no changes of shareholdings in the Bank for Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited.

The Bank’s ultimate parent company is Morgan Stanley, which was incorporated in the State of
Delaware, the United States of America and copies of its financial statements can be obtained from
www.morganstanley.com/investorrelations.
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RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

Other related parties which have transactions with the Bank with no controlling relationship

Name

Morgan Stanley
Asia Limited
Morgan Stanley
Properties (China) Co., Ltd
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley Commodities
Trading (China) Limited
Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley Business
Consulting (Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley (China) Equity
Investment Management Co Ltd
Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund
Management Company Limited
Morgan Stanley Huaxin Securities
Company Limited
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ, Ltd

Place of Registration

Hong Kong
China

Beijing, China
Beijing, China
Shanghai, China
Shanghai, China
Shanghai, China
Shanghai, China
Shanghai, China
Hangzhou, China
Shenzhen, China
Shanghai, China
Shanghai, China

Tokyo, Japan

The related parties of the

Company Type

Business Scope

Private Limited
Company
Wholly Owned
Foreign Corporation

Limited Responsibility

Limited Responsibility
Limited

Limited

Investment banking, Foreign

exchange trading and brokerage

Consulting service

Consulting service
Software development,
Program design

Nonferrous Metal. Minerals-
Responsibility Agricultural Products Import and Export

Consulting, business
services

Limited Responsibility
Limited Responsibility
Limited Responsibility

Limited R

Consulting, Business
Management services
Consulting, business
Management services
Equity investment advisory
and management services
Fund raising, Sales and

Limited Responsibility
Limited Responsibility

Joint Stock Enterprises

Stock, Bond
underwriting and sponsorship
Foreign exchange business
renminbi business

Financial Service

Legal Representative;

Simon John Holden

Registered Capital

N/A USD29,455,000
Zhou, Yan USD6,100,000
Shane Xin Zhang USD100,000
Simon John Holden USD700,000

Hahne Eric Joern USD34,100,000

USD1,000.000

Shane Xin Zhang USD100,000
Sun, Xun USD100,000
Han, Jiang RMB100,000,000
Yu, Hua RMB227,500,000
Wang, Wenxue RMB1,020,000,000
mEFE— RMB10,000,000,000
N/A JPY1,711,958 million

Change on Registered Capital

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Related Party Relationship

Subsidiary of the parent group
Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Related party directly or indirectly
controlled by parent group

Related party directly or indirectly
controlled by parent group

Subsidiary of investor which has
significant influence over the parent group

Subsidiary of investor which has
significant influence over the parent group

Bank also includes key management personnel, their close family
members or entities which are subject to control, joint control or significant influence from key
management personnel’s close family members. Transactions between the Bank and the related
parties that are significant are disclosed separately and those that are not significant are disclosed
on an aggregate basis.

As of balance sheet date, the transactions between the Bank and the above related parties for the
year are as follows:

Interest income

Morgan Stanley Huaxin Securities

Company Limited

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi

UFJ (China), Ltd

Total

2016

2015

Amount
RMB

121,658.04
121,658.04
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Proportion
(%)

0.17

Amount

Proportion

RMB
6,213.69

76,945.56

(%)
0.01

0.09

0.17

83,159.25

0.10
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IX.

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

As of balance sheet date, the transactions between the Bank and the above related parties for the

year are as follows: - continued

Interest expenses

Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd.
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Company Limited
Morgan Stanley Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley Commodities Trading
(China) Limited
Morgan Stanley (China) Equity
Investment Management Co., Ltd
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd
Others

Total

Fee and commission income

Morgan Stanley Asia Limited

2016 2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
1,700,292.90 11.63 2,779,235.15 10.35
276,696.72 1.89 637,179.58 2.38
104,719.17 0.72 189,111.71 0.70
2,184,388.55 14.95 1,412,906.54 5.26
736,058.59 5.04 1,129,830.04 4.21
15,787.40 0.11 - -
1.83 0.00 2.54 0.00
5,017,945.16 34.34 6,148,265.56 22.90
2016 2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
85,140,314.13 92.54 88,649,700.02 73.12
202

45



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

As of balance sheet date, the transactions between the Bank and the above related parties for the

year are as follows: - continued

Operating expenses

Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited

2016 2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
1,154,515.24 1.87 1,480,000.00 2.37

The Bank conducts business with related parties in the course of daily business according to

ordinary business terms.

Unsettled amount of related transactions:

Due from banks

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ, Ltd

Due to financial institutions

Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund Management
Company Limited

Customer deposits

Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd.

Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Company Limited

Morgan Stanley Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited

Morgan Stanley Commodities Trading

(China) Limited

Morgan Stanley (China) Equity
Investment Management Co., Ltd

Others

Total

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
275.07 - 259.46 -
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
273.58 100.00 671.78 16.23
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
100,193,463.67 10.46 120,697,861.63 9.66
21,886,694.06 2.28 80,259,142.52 6.43
- - 9,266,124.83 0.74
193,251,013.86 20.17 241,072,599.46 19.30
47,020,908.25 491 46,266,241.19 3.70
273.58 - 33.62 -
362,352,353.42 37.82 497,562,003.25 39.83
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IX.

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

Unsettled amount of related transactions: - continued

Interest payable

Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd.

Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Company Limited

Morgan Stanley Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited

Morgan Stanley Commodities Trading

(China) Limited

Morgan Stanley (China) Equity
Investment Management Co., Ltd

Others

Total

Other assets

Morgan Stanley Asia Limited

Other liabilities

Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited

Compensation of key management personnel

Compensation of key
management personnel

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
291,416.57 14.20 420,880.02 6.99
27,218.53 1.33 67,355.06 1.12
- - 10,900.57 0.18
92,116.32 4.49 340,307.80 5.66
175,378.03 8.55 193,986.50 3.22
- - 0.07 -
586,129.45 28.57 1,033,430.02 17.17
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
31,573,399.35 91.29 18,095,155.43 84.02
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
299,795.74 1.15 1,296,000.00 6.28
2016 2015
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
9,220,138.00 24.75 4,625,911.52 13.14

Key management personnel are those who have the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Bank.
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X.

1.

2.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview of risk management

(1) Overview of risks

The Bank is exposed to various risks in its business operations, especially the use of financial
instruments; risks are becoming diversified and complicated. The key risks faced by the Bank
are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. Market risks include foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk.

The Bank's risk management objectives are to achieve proper balance between risks and yield,
minimize the adverse impacts of risks on the Bank's performance, and maximize the benefits of
the Bank. Based on these risk management objectives, the Bank's basic risk management
strategy is to identify and analyze the industry's exposure to various risks, establish appropriate
bottom line for risk tolerance, implement risk management, and monitor these exposures to
ensure appropriate measurements are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for establishing the Bank's overall risk
management strategies, monitoring and evaluating the Bank's risk management and internal
control system by Risk Committee, Senior Management Committee and other committees.
Under Risk Committee, the Bank has established the Loan Commitment Committee, Asset and
Liability Management Committee, Operational Risk Oversight Committee, and BCP
Committee to manage its credit, market, operational, liquidity and business contingency risks.

Credit risk

(1) Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when the borrower or counterparty fails to meet the required obligations in the
agreement on due date.

The Bank's credit exposure is mainly from corporate loan lending and interbank placements.
The Bank implements its credit risk management practices under the leadership of the Bank’s
Risk Committee The Bank’s Credit Policy was approved and annually reviewed by the Bank’s
Board and is the primary policy document that governs the credit risk management and control
framework, which includes descriptions on credit assessment, credit rating, loan classification,
country risk management, credit limit authorities and problem exposure management etc.

Credit Risk Department performs independent credit risk oversight and monitoring, including
the independent assessment, approval monitoring and control of credit risk for the Bank to
ensure credit risk taken is within the risk level set by the Board of Directors of the Bank.
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X. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
2. Credit risk - continued
(2) Maximum credit risk exposure information

Without taking into account of any collateral held or any other credit enhancement, the
maximum credit risk exposure as of the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of financial
assets less impairment loss. The maximum credit risk exposure is disclosed below:

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB
On-balance sheet items
Loans and advances to customers
Inter-banks receivable
Include: Due from banks
Placements with banks and other financial
institutions 300,000,000.00 754,552,000.00
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,522,664,096.00 1,495,917,943.00
Interest receivable 38,623,839.00 28,977,740.29
Other financial assets

273,000,000.00 196,000,000.00
403,063,506.28  1,070,521,904.22
103,063,506.28 315,969,904.20

Total on-balance sheet items

Total off-balance sheet items

Total

32,851,099.01

19,437,632.25

2,270,202,540.29

2,810,855,219.76

3,234,400.00

3,234,400.00

2,273,436,940.29

2,814,089,619.76

Other financial assets include security deposit, fees etc.

Except for credit loans, certain credit enhancement measures such as guarantee, pledge are taken by
the Bank for other loans, off-balance sheet items etc., to mitigate credit risk exposure to an
acceptable level.
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X.

2.

RISK MANAGEMENT- continued

Credit risk - continued

(3) Loans and advances to customers and inter-banks receivable
Overdue and impaired

(i) As of 31 December 2016, the Bank has nil overdue or impaired loans and advances to
customers and inter-banks receivable. (31/12/2015: Nil)

(i) Not overdue and not impaired

31/12/2016
Normal Total
RMB RMB
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans 273,000,000.00  273,000,000.00
Inter-banks receivable 403,063,506.28  403,063,506.28
31/12/2015
Normal Total
RMB RMB
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans 196,000,000.00  196,000,000.00
Inter-banks receivable 1,070,521,904.22 1,070,521,904.22

For loans and advances to customers and inter-banks receivable not overdue and not impaired, the
Bank has provided provision according to collective assessment.

(4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB RMB

Neither overdue nor impaired
Bonds held for trading 1,522,664,096.00 1,495,917,943.00

The investments in debt securities include mainly Government bonds, PBOC bills and financial
institution bonds held by the Bank.
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X. RISK MANAGEMENT- continued
2. Credit risk - continued
(5) Analysis on credit risk concentration of financial assets

The Bank manages credit risk concentration of financial assets by industry, relevant analysis
can be referred to Note VII, 6(2).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of loss or bankruptcy arises from the Bank's failure to provide sufficient
funds for the decrease in liabilities or the increase in assets. Liquidity risk can also be caused by the
mismatch between the amount and maturity between assets and liabilities.

(1) Liquidity risk management

The Bank has set up liquidity risk management policy and procedures to identify and control the
short-term and long-term liquidity risk, ensure the Bank operates with prudent liquidity
environment, and at the same time also meet the requirement of the Bank’s daily operation funding.
The policy includes the following:

(i) The Bank closely monitors the structure of RMB and foreign currency position, term, limit,
and cost of maintaining liquidity.

(1)) The Asset and Liability Management Committee holds meeting monthly to review liquidity
risk and discusses the optimization of assets and liabilities structure.

(iii) The Bank has implemented liquidity stress test and submitted reports to the Asset and Liability
Management Committee on a monthly basis to ensure the Bank's orderly operation within one
year under the condition of market credit/liquidity crunch.

(iv) The Asset and Liability Committee reviews the assets and liabilities management report
(“ALCO report”) and business pipelines to ensure the appropriate liquidity and funding
structures are in place.
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RISK MANAGEMENT- continued

Liquidity risk - continued

(2) Analysis on liquidity risk of non-derivative instruments

The following is the maturity analysis for assets and liabilities held by the Bank:

The following table presents the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flow of the Bank for non-

derivative financial assets and liabilities as at balance sheet date.

31/12/2016
Current Within
& overdue one month 1-3 months 3-12 months Over 1 year No maturity date Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 197,516 - - - - 160,383 357,899
Due from banks 103,063 - - - - - 103,063
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions - - 3,549 303,433 - - 306,982
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 1,557,850 - - - - 1,557,850
Loans and advances
to customers - 98,603 1,897 118,803 65,109 - 284,412
Other financial assets - 31,416 - - - 1,435 32,851
Total financial assets 300,579 1,687,869 5446 422,236 65,109 161,818 2,643,057
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions - - - - - - -
Assets sold with repurchase agreement - 90,047 - - - - 90,047
Customer deposits 6,746 586,741 43,901 325,745 - - 963,133
Other financial liabilities - 18,783 835 - - 2,014 21,632
Total financial liabilities 6,746 695,571 44,736 325,745 - 2,014 1,074,812
Net value 293,833 992,298 (39,290) 96,491 65,109 159,804 1,568,245
31/12/2015
Current Within
& overdue one month 1-3 months 3-12 months Over 1 year No maturity date Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 229,290 - - - - 187,538 416,828
Due from banks 317,529 - - - - - 317,529
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions - 454,577 3,685 10,531 306,983 - 775,776
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 1,521,256 - - - - 1,521,256
Loans and advances
to customers - 1,112 101,112 102,199 - - 204,423
Other financial assets - 18,099 - - - 1,435 19,534
Total financial assets 546,819 1,995,044 104,797 112,730 306,983 188,973 3,255,346
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions 4 - - - - - 4
Sale for repurchase financial assets - 450,341 - - - - 450,341
Customer deposits 12,462 696,076 478,601 70,341 - - 1,257,480
Other financial liabilities - 17,710 720 - - 1,913 20,343
Total financial liabilities 12,466 1,164,127 479,321 70,341 - 1,913 1,728,168
Net value 534,353 830,917 (374,524) 42,389 306,983 187,060 1,527,178
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X. RISK MANAGEMENT- continued
4. Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of losses in the Bank’s on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet business
due to adverse changes in market prices. The Bank’s market risks mainly include foreign exchange
risk and interest rate risk. The Bank manages its market risk through limit control (including trading
limit, risk limit and stop loss limit), market risk measurement, monitoring and reporting, bond
market value comparison and market risk capital management. Market Risk Department is
responsible for monitoring market risk and report to Risk Management Committee on a regular
basis. The Bank has established and enhanced market risk limit management system, specified and
standardized the process and reporting of market risk management. The Internal Audit Department
performs audit on market risks management on a regular basis. The Bank has regularly performed
stress testing to evaluate the potential loss arising from market risk under specific adverse incident
in order to strengthen market risk management.

(1) Foreign exchange risk

The Bank is set up and operates in China, the Bank’s foreign currency business is mainly in USD
and HKD. The Bank's loans to customers are mainly in RMB and USD.

The Bank monitors the foreign exchange risk mainly through the management of exposure limits.

The following table presents the structure analysis of the Bank’s financial assets and financial
liabilities by currencies as at balance sheet date:

31/12/2016
USD HKD Other currencies
RMB in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. Total
RMB’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 357,663 7 89 - 357,759
Due from banks 6,360 70,536 26,142 25 103,063
Placements with banks and
other financial institution 300,000 - - - 300,000
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,522,664 - - - 1,522,664
Interest receivable 38,624 - - - 38,624
Loans and advances to customers 273,000 - - - 273,000
Other financial assets 1,435 31,414 2 - 32,851
Total financial assets 2,499,746 101,957 26,233 25 2,627,961
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other
financial institutions - - - - -
Repurchase agreements 90,000 - - - 90,000
Customer deposits 958,227 - 37 - 958,264
Interest payable 2,052 - - - 2,052
Other financial liabilities 2,176 17,656 1,800 - 21,632
Total financial liabilities 1,052,455 17,656 1,838 - 1,071,948
Net open position 1,447,291 84,301 24,396 25 1,556,013
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X.

4.

RISK MANAGEMENT- continued

Market risk - continued

(1) Foreign exchange risk - continued

31/12/2015
USD HKD Other currencies
RMB in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. Total
RMB’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 413,662 2,941 84 - 416,687
Due from banks 5,616 285,818 24,505 31 315,970
Placements with banks and
other financial institution 300,000 454,552 - - 754,552
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,495,918 - - - 1,495,918
Interest receivable 28,966 12 - - 28,978
Loans and advances to customers 196,000 - - - 196,000
Other financial assets 1,435 17,998 4 - 19,437
Total financial assets 2,441,597 761,321 24,593 31 3,227,542
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 4 - - - 4
Asset sold with repurchase agreements 450,000 - - - 450,000
Customer deposits 1,190,405 58,638 43 - 1,249,086
Interest payable 5,975 42 - - 6,017
Other financial liabilities 18,166 464 1,713 - 20,343
Total financial liabilities 1,664,550 59,144 1,756 - 1,725,450
Net open position 777,047 702,177 22,837 31 1,502,092

The following table illustrates the impact of 5% appreciation or 5% depreciation of the spot
exchange rate and forward exchange rate of RMB against all foreign currencies on owner's
equity of the Bank.

2016 2015
(Decrease)/ increase (Decrease)/ increase
in owner’s equity in owner’s equity
RMB’000 RMB™000
Appreciate by 5% (4,077) (27,189)
Depreciate by 5% 4,077 27,189

(2) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the impact of change in market interest rate on fair value of financial assets
and liabilities of the balance sheet and interest income and expenses of the income statement
for the period. The Bank's foreign exchange business lending rates and large amount deposit
rates primarily fluctuates with the Bank’s funding cost while the RMB business lending and
deposit rates fluctuates within the permitted range provided by the PBOC. The inter-bank
placements and takings interest rates are determined by the market.
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4.

Market risk - continued

RISK MANAGEMENT- continued

(2) Interest rate risk- continued

As of the balance sheet date, the interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Bank are as

follows:

Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Interest receivable
Loans and advances to customers
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and

other financial institutions
Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Interest payable
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net open position

Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Interest receivable
Loans and advances to customers
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and

other financial institutions
Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Interest payable
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net open position

31/12/2016
Within 1 month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 vears Over 5 years Non-interest bearing Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
357,663 - - - - 96 357,759
103,063 - - - - - 103,063
- 300,000 - - - - 300,000
350,020 - 409,212 763,432 - - 1,522,664
R _ - - - 38,624 38,624
- 97,500 175,500 - - - 273,000
- - - - - 32,851 32,851
810,746 397,500 584,712 763,432 - 71,571 2,627,961
90,000 - - - - - 90,000
591,749 43,754 322,761 - - - 958,264
- - - - - 2,052 2,052
- - - - - 21,632 21,632
681,749 43,754 322,761 - - 23,684 1,071,948
128,997 353,746 261,951 763,432 - 47,887 1,556,013
31/12/2015
Within | month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Non-interest bearing Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
413,662 - - - - 3,025 416,687
315,970 - - - - - 315,970
454,552 300,000 - - - - 754,552
- - 730,537 765,381 - - 1,495,918
R - - - - 28,978 28,978
98,000 98,000 - - - - 196,000
R N - - - 19,437 19,437
1,282,184 398,000 730,537 765,381 - 51,440 3,227,542
4 - - - - - 4
450,000 - - - - - 450,000
706,098 474,112 68,876 - - - 1,249,086
- - - - - 6,017 6,017
- - - - - 20,343 20,343
1,156,102 474,112 68,876 - - 26,360 1,725,450
126,082 (76,112) 661,661 765,381 - 25,080 1,502,092
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X.

4.

RISK MANAGEMENT- continued

Market risk - continued

(2) Interest rate risk- continued

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rates gap between the interest bearing
assets such as balances with the Central Bank; due from banks and other financial institutions;
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and other receivables and interest
bearing liabilities such as customer deposits and repurchase agreements as of the balance sheet
date. The upward and downward change of 50 basis points is used by management in evaluating
the possible changes in interest rates and the corresponding interest rate risks.

Banking book

The following table illustrates from a profitability perspective, the impact of the increase or
decrease of the interest rate of all currencies by 50 basis points on the net interest income of the
banking book in next year. Banking book includes the interest bearing assets and interest bearing
liabilities except financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

2016 2015
(Decrease)/ increase  (Decrease)/ increase
in net interest income in net interest income

RMB’000 RMB000
Increase by 50 basis points 177 214
Decrease by 50 basis points 177) (214)

(ii) Trading book

The following table illustrates from a economic value perspective, the impact of the increase
or decrease of the interest rate of all currencies by 50 basis points on the net assets of the trading
book in next year. Trading account mainly includes financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

2016 2015
(Decrease)/ increase  (Decrease)/ increase
in net assets in net assets
RMB’000 RMB000
Increase by 50 basis points (7,284) (10,816)
Decrease by 50 basis points 7,284 10,816
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X.

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT- continued
Capital adequacy
The Bank follows below principles in managing capital:

- To maintain a strong capital base and high-quality capital to support the development of its
business, and comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators;

- Adequately identify, measure, monitor, mitigate and control various risks to ensure the capital
level adapt to the level of risk and risk management.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are regularly monitored by the Bank’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee and
implemented by the CBRC. The required information is filed with the CBRC on a quarterly basis.

Capital adequacy reflects the Bank's ability to maintain sustainable operation and resist the risks.
From 1 January 2013, in accordance with Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks
(Provisional) and other relevant regulations promulgated by the CBRC, commercial banks are
required to comply with minimum capital requirements, i.e. minimum core tier 1 capital adequacy
ratio, tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio of 5%, 6% and 8%, respectively.
Commercial banks are required to provide additional reserve capital which is 2.5% of risk-weighted
assets. Under some specific circumstances, commercial banks are required to provide
countercyclical buffer, which ranges from 0 - 2.5% of risk weighted assets. However, the CBRC
has yet to require countercyclical buffer for the time being. In addition, for systemically important
banks, a buffer requirement of 1% of risk weighted assets is required. The Bank is not categorized
as systemically important bank.

The Bank constantly monitors, analyses, reports capital adequacy result, and compares with the
management objectives to manage the capital adequacy ratio. The Bank has put in place various
measures, such as asset growth control, adjusting structure of risk assets, internal capital
accumulation, and capital injection, in order to ensure the capital adequacy ratios constantly satisfy
the regulatory requirements and internal management objectives, resist the potential risks and
support a sustainable development of business.

The Bank calculated capital adequacy ratio, tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and core tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio, in accordance with the Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks
(Provisional) that is effective from 1 January 2013, as follows:

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

Risk weighted assets 1,267,150 1,942,997
Include: Credit risk weighted assets 676,224 706,155
Market risk weighted assets 271,634 944,848
Operational risk weighted assets 319,292 291,994

Capital, net 1,543,647 1,484,040
Include: Core tier 1 capital 1,536,647 1,484,040
Other tier 1 capital - -

Tier 2 capital 7,000 4,000

Core tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 121% 76%
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 121% 76%
Capital adequacy ratio 122% 76%
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XI.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The valuation of the fair value is determined based on market related information and financial
instruments related information at a specific time. When determining the fair value of financial
instruments, the Bank considers the market price as the best approximation of the fair value of the
financial instruments for which there is an active market. For financial instruments of which the
market does not exist, the Bank adopts other valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
these financial assets and financial liabilities (details please refer to note IV).

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

e The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices;

e The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis or observable market prices;

e The fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, a discount cash flow analysis is performed using the applicable yield curve
for the duration of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table illustrates the levels of fair values of the Bank’s financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at the balance sheet date:

31/12/2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 1,522,664 - 1,522,664
31/12/2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 1,495,918 - 1,495,918

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the year of 2016 and 2015.

The loss from changes in fair value of the Bank arising from financial assets at FVTPL was
RMB20,847,097.00 (2015: Gain of RMB12,188,473.00).
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XII.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - continued
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis - continued

The Bank employs control processes to validate the fair value of its financial instruments, including
those derived from pricing models. These control processes are designed to assure that the values
used for financial reporting are based on observable inputs wherever possible. In the event that
observable inputs are not available, the control processes are designed to assure that the valuation
approach utilized is appropriate and consistently applied and that the assumptions are reasonable.
These control processes include reviews of the pricing model’s theoretical soundness and
appropriateness by Morgan Stanley Group personnel with relevant expertise who are independent
from the trading desks.

Additionally, groups within the Finance, Market Risk and Credit Risk Departments that are
independent from the Trading Divisions participate in the review and validation of the fair values
generated from pricing models, as appropriate. Where a pricing model is used to determine fair
value, recently executed comparable transactions and other observable market data are considered
for purposes of validating assumptions underlying the model.

In the current year, the Bank’s financial assets measured at fair value comprise the Government
bonds and financial institution bonds etc. These financial assets are valued using quoted prices in
active markets when available. To the extent quoted prices are not available, fair value is
determined based on a valuation model that has interest rate yield curves, cross-currency basis index
spreads, and country credit spreads for structures similar to the bond in terms of issuer, maturity
and seniority as inputs. These financial assets are generally categorised in Level 1 or 2 of the fair
value hierarchy.

Fair value of assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value but fair value disclosures are
required

The assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the balance sheet include: balances with the
Central Bank, due from banks, placements with banks and other financial institutions, loans and
advances to customers, interest receivable, due to banks and other financial institutions, repurchase
agreements, customer deposits, interest payable and etc.

The maturity term of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value at balance sheet date are within
1 year except loans and advances to customers. The maturity term of loans and advances to

customers are over 1 year and the floating rate is adopted. Accordingly, the fair values of assets and
liabilities not measured at fair value approximate the carrying amount as at balance sheet date.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Bank were approved on 10 April 2017 by the Board of Directors.

* * END OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * *
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